COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

Between

COMMUNITY SAVINGS CREDIT UNION

(hereinafter referred to as the "Employer")

And



(Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)
(hereinafter referred to as the "Union")

July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2026

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 1	– PURPOSE	1
1.02	. INTON ORGINIES I DEGOGNIESON	1
	2 — UNION SECURITY and RECOGNITION	
	3 — UNION REPRESENTATION	
_		
•		
ARTICLE 2	H — THE RIGHTS of the EMPLOYER	4
-	5 — DEFINITION of EMPLOYEES	
5.01	Probationary Period	
5.02	Full-Time Regular	
5.03	Temporary Employee	
5.04 5.05	Part-Time Regular	_
	Mobile Employees for the Mainland Branches, Victoria Branch Excluded	
	6 — HOURS of WORK and OVERTIME	
	Overtime Premium	
6.06		8
6.07		8
	7 — STATUTORY HOLIDAYS	
•		_
•		_
	AND THE THE CAMPON AND THE PROPERTY OF THE PARTY OF THE P	
	3 — ANNUAL VACATION and SUPPLEMENTARY VACATION PLAN	
-		
8.06	Supplementary Vacation Plan	
	ouppromonally recution I have	
•		
) — LEAVE of ABSENCE	
9.01	Union Business	12
9.02	Pregnancy/Parental/Adoption Leave	
9.03	Bereavement Leave	
9.04	Special Leave Without Pay	_
9.05	Jury Duty	-
9.06	Family Responsibility Leave	-
9.07	Compassionate Care Leave	
9.08	Transition Leave	
9.09	Domestic or Sexual Violence Leave	15

ARTICLE:	10 — BENEFIT PLANS and HEALTH LEAVE	15
10.01		15
10.02	Health Leave for Casual Employees	16
10.03	Health Leave for Full-time Regular Employees	
10.04	Retirement Plan	
	11 — SALARY POLICY	
11.01		-
11.02	Job Descriptions	_
11.03	*	_
11.04	Promotional Increases	
11.05	Salary Progression	_
11.06	Salary Policy on Recalls	
11.07	Training & Cross-Training	
11.08	In- charge Premium	
	12 — JOB POSTING	21 21
0		
•	Tab Chaving	
	Job Sharing	
	13 — LAYOFF and RECALL	
•	Layoff	
•		
	D 11	
	Recall	_
	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	
	14 — SENIORITY	
•		_
•		_
		_
14.05		24
14.06		24
14.07		24
14.08	Part-Time Regular Employees	24
14.09	Casual Employees	24
ARTICLE	15 — DISCHARGE, TERMINATION and SUSPENSION	24
15.03		24
		-
٠.		
	16 — GENERAL	
		_
		_
16.03	Picket Lines	
16.04	Bulletin Board	
16.05	No Strikes or Lockouts	
16.06	Personnel File	
16.07	1 CISOTHEI I IIC	
16.08	Robbery or Hold-Up	
16.09	Lapel Pins / Decals	
_	Laper Filis / Decais	
	Corporate Office Parking	
16.11	Out put ale Utitie faikitig	2/

16.12 Surrey Branch Parking	27
ARTICLE 17 — TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE and SEVERANCE PAY	27
17.01	27
17.02	27
17.03	27
17.04	27
17.05 Severance Pay	
17.06 Retirement Pay	28
ARTICLE 18 — GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	28
18.01	28
18.02	28
18.03	29
ARTICLE 19 — ARBITRATION	29
19.01	29
19.02	29
19.03	30
19.04	30
19.05	30
19.06	
ARTICLE 20 — HEALTH and SAFETY	30
20.01	_
20.02	30
20.03	
ARTICLE 21 — EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS	.31
ARTICLE 22 — DURATION	.31
22.01	.31
22.02	
APPENDIX "A" - JOB CLASSIFICATIONS	
APPENDIX "A" SALARY RANGES	
APPENDIX "A-2"	43
APPENDIX "B" - SYSTEMS DEPARTMENT	44
APPENDIX "C" - SERVICE CHARGES	46
APPENDIX "D" - STAFF LOANS	48
APPENDIX "E" - REGISTERED RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN	
LETTER of UNDERSTANDING #1 - TRAINING	
LETTER of UNDERSTANDING #2	52
LETTER of UNDERSTANDING #3	
LETTER of UNDERSTANDING #4 - LIVING WAGE – CASUAL RATE	54

#### ARTICLE 1 — PURPOSE

#### 1.01

The purpose of this Agreement is to maintain a harmonious relationship between Community Savings Credit Union and its employees; to define clearly the hours of work, rates of pay and conditions of employment, to provide for an amicable method of settling differences which may from time to time arise, and to promote the mutual interest of the Employer and its employees and in recognition whereof the Parties hereto covenant and agree as follows:

#### 1.02

Neither the Union nor the Employer in carrying out their obligations under this Agreement shall discriminate in matters of hiring, training, promotion, transfer, layoff, discharge or otherwise because of race, colour, creed, national origin, age, sex or marital status.

### **ARTICLE 2 — UNION SECURITY and RECOGNITION**

### 2.01

The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole bargaining authority for all employees in its offices within the jurisdiction of the Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union Local 378, hereinafter referred to as "MoveUP", and within the classifications of office and clerical workers listed in Appendix "A" or within such new classifications as may from time to time be agreed and established by the Parties. It is expressly agreed that this agreement shall not apply to any elected or appointed officer, business agent or representative of the Employer.

#### 2.02

The Employer agrees that all employees as per <u>Article</u> 2.01 above, as a condition of employment, shall, within fifteen (15) days from the date of employment, become and remain members of the Union.

### 2.03

The Employer will honour written assignments of wages for union dues, initiation fees and general membership assessments and shall remit such to the union monthly together with the following information as to the persons from whose pay such deductions have been made:

Name
Mailing Address
Email Address
Monthly salary
Amount of dues deducted
Job classification
Employee status
Date of Hire
New Hires
Terminations

Such information shall be supplied by the Employer and in a form mutually acceptable to the parties.

# **ARTICLE 3 — UNION REPRESENTATION**

#### 3.01

# Recognition of Union Executive Board Members, Councillors, Job Stewards and Union Representatives

The Employer will recognize individuals and/or employees elected, appointed, and/or designated by the Union as its qualified Executive Board Members, Councillors, Job Stewards and Union Representatives. The Union may identify one Job Steward as the Chief Steward.

The Union will notify the Employer in writing as to who are the elected, appointed and/or designated Executive Board Members, Councillors, Job Stewards and Union Representatives authorized by the Union to discuss and wherever possible resolve problems arising out of the Collective Agreement.

In the event that an alternative to the Job Steward is assigned by the Union to discuss and, wherever possible, resolve a problem arising out of the Agreement, reasonable notice will be provided in advance by the Union to the Employer.

# **Rights of Job Stewards**

The duties and responsibilities of Job Stewards shall include the following activities:

- (a) Investigation of complaints, grievances, and/or disputes including the making of presentations to management as required.
- (b) Posting notices relating to meeting, dues, entertainment, health and safety and general Union information and activities on Union Bulletin Boards.
- (c) Participation in collective bargaining, and/or arbitration proceedings when directed by the Union.
- (d) Participation in the administration of the Union as may be required for Union Executive Meetings and Job Steward Meetings.
- (e) Briefing time of up to one (1) hour prior to grievance meetings as set out under the Grievance Procedure.

### 3.02

The Job Steward(s) may, within reason, carry out their duties in Article 3.1 Rights of Job Stewards (a), (b), and (e) above, without loss of pay, during regular business hours and it shall be considered as time worked. Time spent by Job Stewards beyond their regular working hours will not be paid by the <u>Employer</u>. Before carrying out their duties relating to 3.1(a), (b), and (e), during regular working hours, the Job Steward will first obtain permission from the <u>Manager or their</u> designate at <u>their</u> location. Such permission will not be unreasonably withheld. It is understood that the Job Steward will carry out <u>their</u> duties in a manner as to cause a minimum of interference to normal job duties and business operations.

- (a) Each Party to this Agreement shall appoint a Standing Committee.
- (b) The Union's Committee shall be composed of not more than three (3) regular employees who have completed their probationary period and are Union members.
- (c) Each Party shall notify the other by letter of the names of their Committee members and any changes which may take place from time to time.
- (d) The purpose of the Standing Committee shall be to meet together at the request of either Committee to discuss matters related to the administration of the Collective Agreement and to attempt to resolve any problems that may arise or can be foreseen. A decision by the Union's Standing Committee must be confirmed by an Official Representative of the Union, to bind the Union.
- (e) The Parties agree to appoint members of the Standing Committee pursuant to article 3.3 within one month following ratification of a renewal Collective Agreement. Meetings will be scheduled to take place in February, June and October of each year although more frequent meetings may be held if the parties are agreed that there are sufficient issues which necessitate the need for additional meetings.
- (f) The Parties also agree to set agenda items for each meeting and to exchange agenda items for discussion at upcoming meetings in advance of such meetings. Agenda items must be exchanged no later than two (2) weeks prior to the date of the scheduled meeting. This does not preclude the discussion of any issue which either Party may view as requiring immediate review. However, the Parties agree to make every reasonable effort to exchange agenda items in advance. Agenda items will include matters such as Management Performing Bargaining Unit Work, Work Loads and Respectful Work Environment, Expressions of Interest, Job Postings, Benefit Program Review, Regular Shifts for Part-Time Employees and Rights of Job Stewards.
- (g) If the Union has reason to believe that a work environment is not free from all forms of harassment including and repeated, vexatious behaviour that erodes an employee's dignity, the Union may raise the matter with the Standing Committee before initiating a grievance under the collective agreement.
- (h) The Employer will ensure that employee workloads are reasonable. If the Union has reason to believe that workloads are excessive, the Union will raise the matter with the Standing Committee before initiating a grievance.

### ARTICLE 4 — THE RIGHTS of the EMPLOYER

#### 4.01

The Union recognizes the rights of the Employer to operate the business and direct the working force subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the right of the Union or employees to grieve, as provided in Articles 18 and 19.

Nothing herein contained shall limit the statutory powers and duties of the Directors of the Employer under the Company Act, Section 141, which provides:

"Subject to this Act, the regulations and rules the Directors shall manage or supervise the management of the Credit Union and may exercise all the powers of the Credit Union."

Actual direction of the office staff will be under the authority delegated by the Board of Directors to the Chief Executive Officer who, in turn, may delegate any portion of these duties and authority to others in any capacity.

### 4.02

The Union agrees to use every reasonable effort and means at its disposal to assist and promote the business and welfare of the Employer.

# **ARTICLE 5 — DEFINITION of EMPLOYEES**

# 5.01 Probationary Period

All employees shall be considered probationary for the first ninety (90) working days of employment. This period may be extended by mutual agreement between the Employer and the Union. Reviews will be done with these employees every thirty (30) working days.

### 5.02 Full-Time Regular

All employees hired to work on a regular full-time basis.

### 5.03 Temporary Employee

A temporary employee is one so informed by the Employer at the start of employment. Temporary employment shall be for a specified period not exceeding three (3) months, except when replacing for temporary periods due to extended leave, maternity, parental, long-term illness or when extended by mutual agreement between the Union and the Employer. Temporary positions for maternity leave replacement shall be posted. These employees shall be paid in accordance with the salary scales in Appendix "A", and shall advance through the scales based on length of service. After three (3) months service the benefits shown under Article 10.01 and 10.02 shall apply except for short term and long term disability. Temporary employees' contract must be for at least one (1) year to have coverage for Basic Life Insurance, Optional Life, and Accidental Death & Dismemberment.

# 5.04 Part-Time Regular

- (a) An employee hired to work regular hours or days on a continuing basis but who works fewer than the normal working hours in a month. These employees shall be covered by all conditions of this Agreement. Benefit Plans and Health Leave included in wage rates, see Appendix "A-2".
- (b) A part-time regular employee hired on a regular full-time basis who has not completed a <u>ninety</u> (<u>9</u>0) working day probationary period in the position applied for will be required to complete the probationary period.
- (c) For the purposes of this Agreement as it applies to part-time employees, sixty (60) working days is equivalent to three (3) months, one hundred (100) days is equivalent to six (6) months and two hundred (200) days is equivalent to one (1) year.
- (d) Schedules for part-time employees will be posted as follows:
  - i) the <u>Employer</u> will post all part-time positions showing the days and hours for each week that is required as per Article 12.03.
  - ii) postings will be: maximum 5 days per week maximum 30 hours per week.
  - iii) the employee will not be able to split the posting, they must take the full posting.
  - iv) the posting may be in two different branches during the week.
  - v) any employee that is unable to work any of the posted shifts will be laid-off and if they wish, may be placed on the recall list for one year.
  - vi) any unscheduled days or hours available shall be referred to regular part-time employees to a maximum of 5 shifts or 35 hours per week and any remaining hours shall be referred to casual employees based on the ability to do the job and seniority, in that order.
  - vii) if the part-time employees in the branch do not wish to work additional hours, then it would be offered system wide based on ability to do the job and seniority, in that order.
  - viii) part-time employees would be required to advise the <u>People & Culture team</u> if they would like additional days and hours. They must be specific in what they would like.
  - ix) any changes to existing postings will be posted as required.
  - x) the Systems department postings will be exempt from 5.04.

# 5.05 Casual Employee

An employee who does not hold a regular position and works on an incidental basis for the purpose of assisting with peak workload periods, vacations, sickness, floaters and Leaves of Absence. Amongst those casual employees able to do the job required, the principles of seniority shall be applied when calling them to work.

# 5.06 <u>Mobile Employees</u> for the Mainland Branches, Victoria Branch Excluded

- (a) Mobile employees are employees that would work at all of the mainland branches. All terms and conditions apply except for 5.04(d)(iv).
- (b) For the purposes of travel compensation only, an employee will be assigned a branch location by the Employer at the time of hire. Travel compensation is set out in the Reimbursement of Personal Vehicle Use Policy and calculated based upon the aforementioned assigned branch.

### **ARTICLE 6 — HOURS of WORK and OVERTIME**

- 6.01
- (a) The standard day shift shall consist of up to eight (8) hours per day, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m.
- (b) Where the Credit Union is open for business the standard work week shall consist of thirty-five (35) hours; Monday through Saturday inclusive.
- (c) In the event it becomes necessary to open the Credit Union for business on Mondays, the Employer agrees that a schedule of days off will be negotiated with the Labour Management Relations Committee. It will not be the intent of the Employer to work employees six (6) consecutive days. The Employer agrees to provide two (2) consecutive days off for regular full-time employees and, wherever it is possible, for regular part-time employees. If problems arise with respect to regular part-time employees the matter will be referred to the Labour Management Relations Committee for discussion. Employees will not work six (6) days in a week unless the sixth (6th) day is paid as overtime.
- (d) Where a branch or branches are open six (6) days per week and where pairs of employees within the same classification are willing, those pairs of employees shall have the opportunity to rotate their shifts to the other end of the week (Monday-Friday to Tuesday-Saturday) once every six (6) months. At the end of the six (6) months those pairs of employees shall revert to their original ends of the week.
- (e) **Reporting at Non-Regular Centre:** If an employee is required to report for their regular day's work at a centre other than their regular headquarters, mileage at the appropriate rate will be paid to and from that location, less the amount of mileage normally taken by the employee to travel to and from their regular headquarters. Reasonable parking costs shall be reimbursed upon receipt.
- A one (1) hour <u>unpaid</u> lunch period will be provided and taken between 11:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. of the regular working days. <u>The Employer shall provide a thirty</u> (30) minute unpaid lunch period for any shift exceeding 5 hours and less than a regular working day.

Two (2) relief periods per day of fifteen (15) minutes each, one (1) in the morning and one (1) in the afternoon, shall be provided without loss of pay.

Part-time employees will be entitled to the following, without loss of pay;

up to five (5) hours worked — one (1) fifteen (15) minute rest period; in excess of five (5) hours worked — two (2) fifteen (15) minute rest periods.

Lunch Hour	Morning Rest Period	Afternoon Rest Period
11 - 12 p.m.	o min.	30 min.
12 - 1 p.m.	15 min.	15 min.
1 - 2 p.m.	15 min.	15 min.
2 - 3 p.m.	30 min.	o min.

### 6.04 Overtime Premium

- (a) Time worked in excess of the standard day-shift shall be paid for at time and one-half (1½) the employee's straight-time hourly rate for the first one-half (½) hour and two (2) times the straight-time hourly rate thereafter.
- (b) Time worked by an employee on the employee's scheduled day off shall be paid for at time and one-half (1½) the employee's straight-time hourly rate for the first one-half (½) hour and two (2) times the straight-time hourly rate thereafter.
- (c) Time worked on a Sunday shall be paid for at two (2) times the employee's straight-time hourly rate.
- (d) Time worked on a holiday provided for in Article 7 or a day in lieu of such holiday shall be paid for at the rate of double the employee's regular rate in addition to the employee's regular salary.
- (e) Call-Outs

An employee called back to work after having completed a regular day's work, or from a regular day off, or from vacation shall be paid at the applicable overtime premium specified in 6.04 for a minimum of four (4) hours or for time worked, whichever is greater.

Travel time to and from the employee's residence will be considered time worked.

(f) An employee called back to work for an emergency (ie: setting an alarm, locking doors, police or fire, etc.) shall be paid overtime for a minimum of two (2) hours overtime or time worked, whichever is greater. Time spent in travelling shall be considered overtime.

- (g) Overtime work must be authorized by the <u>manager or their</u> authorized representative.
- (h) Systems Department
  All overtime shall be voluntary except where work is required to be completed to provide an up-to-date, on-line banking system for the Credit Union. The junior qualified employee cannot refuse to perform the required work.
- An employee who works overtime beyond a regular shift shall be allowed a one (1) hour paid meal period in which to eat the meal at <u>their</u> straight-time hourly rate of pay, provided such overtime is in excess of two (2) hours work. The meal period may be taken before, during or after the overtime work, as may be mutually agreed.
- Employees who work overtime may take time off in lieu of overtime pay but such time off must be taken at a time mutually agreed upon with the Employer. The length of time off with pay shall be equal to the straight-time equivalent to the overtime earnings.
- **6.07** All overtime will be voluntary.

### ARTICLE 7 — STATUTORY HOLIDAYS

#### 7.01

(a) The Employer agrees to provide all full-time employees with the following Statutory Holidays, without loss of pay:

New Year's Day	Family Day	Good Friday
Easter Monday	Victoria Day	Canada Day
BC Day	Labour Day	Thanksgiving Day
National Day for Truth and Reconciliation	Remembrance Day	Christmas Day
Boxing Day	*Three (3) Floating Days	

and any other day that may be stated a legal holiday by the Provincial, Civic and/or Federal Government. The Employer further agrees that should one of the above Statutory Holidays fall on an employee's normal day(s) off the employee shall receive an additional day or days off, with pay, to be taken the working day preceding the holiday or the working day succeeding the holiday.

# (b) Three (3) Floating Days *

These additional guaranteed holidays to be taken at a time mutually agreeable between the Employer and employee. Floating days may be split into two half days. A half day is considered a four (4) hour day with one (1) fifteen (15) minute paid break.

### 7.02

When a statutory or guaranteed holidays falls on a Monday, being a day when the employee normally does not work, the Employer shall declare the preceding Saturday as the day in lieu of such holiday. Where, in the opinion of the Employer, work on Easter Monday is essential, another compensating day mutually agreed to, will be granted and overtime rates will not prevail for the work performed on Easter Monday. However, should the Employer request the employee to work on the agreed day off, then overtime rates shall apply.

### 7.03

In the event any of the holidays enumerated in 7.01 above occur during the period of an employee's vacation, an additional day's vacation with pay shall be allowed for each holiday so occurring.

#### ARTICLE 8 — ANNUAL VACATION and SUPPLEMENTARY VACATION PLAN

### 8.01

- (a) The vacation year shall be January 1st to December 31st. Employees commencing employment January 1st June 30th shall be credited with a vacation year, those commencing employment July 1st December 31st shall not receive credit for a vacation year until the following vacation year but shall still receive a prorated vacation as per 8.02(a) herein.
- (b) Vacation shall be taken in the vacation year in which it is being earned subject to the provisions of 8.02 and 8.06 of this Article.
- (c) Vacation shall be on the basis of two percent (2%) per week or the current salary, whichever is greater for the number of days vacation when vacation is taken.
- (d) Should an employee take a vacation in excess of <u>their</u> earned entitlement, the employee shall reimburse the Employer for any overpayment <u>the employee</u> may have received for holidays provided by this Article.

### 8.02

Regular full-time employees shall earn paid vacations in accordance with the following entitlements:

- (a) During the first (1st) vacation year of employment, an employee shall earn a paid vacation entitlement of one <u>and a quarter (1.25)</u> working day for each month or major portion of a month worked, up to a maximum of <u>fifteen</u> (15) days.
- (b) Second vacation year fifteen (15) working days;
- (c) Third (3rd) vacation year sixteen (16) working days;
- (d) Fourth (4th) vacation year seventeen (17) working days;
- (e) Fifth (5th) vacation year nineteen (19) working days:
- (f) Sixth (6th) vacation year twenty (20) working days;
- (g) Seventh (7th) vacation year twenty-one (21) working days;
- (h) Eighth (8th) vacation year twenty-two (22) working days;
- (i) Ninth (9th) vacation year twenty-three (23) working days;
- (j) Tenth (10th) vacation year twenty-four (24) working days;
- (k) Eleventh (11th) vacation year twenty-five (25) working days;
- (l) Twelfth (12th) vacation year twenty-six (26) working days;
- (m) Thirteenth (13th) vacation year twenty-seven (27) working days:
- (n) Fourteenth (14th) vacation year twenty-eight (28) working days;
- (o) Fifteenth (15th) vacation year twenty-nine (29) working days;
- (p) Sixteenth (16th) vacation year thirty (30) working days.

### 8.03

The Employer shall post a vacation list on the first working day in January each year and employees shall select their vacation period by February 15th. Not later than February 28th, the Employer shall notify employees whether or not the vacation periods selected are approved.

Employees are required to fully select their vacation by February 15th, but requested changes after approval would not be unreasonably denied.

### 8.04

Senior employees shall be given preference in the selection of vacation periods. Employees make selections in blocks of full weeks. Employees who wish to take their vacation in broken periods may do so subject to the following conditions:

Employees shall select their vacation periods in order of seniority as defined in this Agreement. However, only one (1) vacation period shall be selected by seniority until all employees in the signing group have had the opportunity to select one (1) vacation period. Subsequently, those employees who have chosen to take their vacations in two (2) or more separate periods shall select the second (2nd) and subsequent periods in order of seniority for each selection. Part-time employees select by seniority, with full-time employees.

### 8.05

- (a) Full Time Employees with three (3) weeks vacation entitlement or more shall be entitled to bank up to a maximum of one (1) week vacation and must take the banked vacation in the following year. Employees shall notify the Employer by April 15th of the year the vacation is earned.
- (b) Part Time Employees shall be entitled to carry up to a maximum of five (5) days of accrued vacation pay and must use the banked vacation pay in the following year.

# 8.06 Supplementary Vacation Plan

(a) After completing five (5) or more years of continuous service with the Credit Union, an employee shall, in addition to the regular vacation to which the employee is entitled, become eligible to receive a supplementary vacation with pay each five (5) years, as set forth below:

Years of Completed Continuous Service	Weeks Supplementary Vacation
After 5 years After 10 years After 15 years After 20 years After 25 years After 30 years After 35 years	5 days 5 days 5 days 5 days 10 days 5 days 5 days

- (b) The supplementary vacation may be taken in conjunction with the regular vacation to which the employee is entitled, in which event the supplementary vacation shall be taken at a time to be agreed upon by the <u>Employer</u> and the employee.
- (c) One (1) week's supplementary vacation pay shall be equal to one (1) week's salary of the employee's job at the time the vacation is taken.

(d) The supplementary vacation must be taken prior to the employee becoming eligible for <u>their</u> next earned period of supplementary vacation provided in 8.06 (a).

### 8.07

Part-time regular employees shall receive the same number of calendar days of vacation as full-time regular employees with the same amount of vacation years service. Vacation pay shall be the appropriate percentage of gross earnings for the period in which vacation was earned.

#### 8.08

Employees who work part of the year due to <u>STD</u>/LTD claim in excess of twelve (12) weeks and employees who terminate shall have vacation pay prorated as a percentage of gross earnings. This shall apply to Maternity/Parental Leave where the employee does not return to employment from the leave.

# ARTICLE 9 — LEAVE of ABSENCE

### 9.01 Union Business

- (a) Leave of absence without pay will be granted to employees for the purpose of attending the Union's business or a bargaining unit employee serving as a Trainee Union Representative providing the Employer's work requirements will allow for such leave. The Union will request such leave by giving the Employer at least five (5) days notice.
- (b) Upon thirty (30) calendar days request, an employee who is elected or appointed for a full-time position to the Union, shall be granted a leave of absence without pay, and without loss of seniority, for up to one (1) year, subject to extension by mutual agreement. The employee shall be allowed to continue participating in the benefit plans of this Agreement, except for STD and LTD, employees will not be covered by STD and LTD during a leave of absence, only during maternity/parental leave, and she/he shall pay the full premiums of these plans.

# 9.02 Pregnancy/Parental/Adoption Leave

Leave of absence in case of pregnancy/parental/adoption leave shall be granted in accordance with the Employment Standards Act. Such leaves will not affect <u>health</u> leave or seniority provisions.

A regular employee shall be entitled to six (6) months leave without pay upon completion of the pregnancy/parental/adoption leave period. The Employer is not responsible for the costs of the benefit plan premiums beyond the time required by the Employment Standards maternity/parental benefits. All pregnancy/parental/adoption leave of absence requests shall be in writing and shall show the last day to be worked and the expected date of return to work.

If an unpaid leave is taken after the completion of the pregnancy/parental/adoption leave period, <u>health leave</u> days and vacation days will not continue to accrue during the unpaid portion of the leave. Seniority will continue to accrue.

A regular employee returning to work after being on pregnancy/parental/adoption leave shall return to <u>their</u> former position or a comparable position <u>at their home branch</u>, where returning to their home branch is operationally feasible.

A regular employee on the additional six (6) months leave without pay may continue to be covered under the benefits plan during <u>their</u> leave provided they pay the monthly premiums in advance.

Vacancies arising under the provisions will be posted as "up to eighteen (18) months."

In the event the expected date of return is for twelve (12) months but is extended for an additional six (6) months, the vacancy created by the leave will not have to be reposted.

# 9.03 Bereavement Leave

(a) In case of death in the immediate family of a full-time or part-time regular employee, the employee shall be granted leave of absence without loss of pay for up to five (5) consecutive days, for immediate family.

Immediate family are: <u>fiancé</u>, <u>common-law spouse</u>, spouse, mother, father, <u>legal guardian</u>, sister, brother, children, foster children, <u>grandparents</u>, step parents, step children <u>and grandchildren</u>.

In the event of the death of the immediate family, one (1) of the days mentioned above may be taken on the day of the burial/wake/ceremony.

(b) In case of death of other family members, the employee shall be granted up to three (3) consecutive days leave of absence without loss of pay and up to five (5) days where travel warrants it, i.e.: one (1) day travel and one (1) day additional.

Other family members are: mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandparents-in-law, sibling-in-law, niece and nephew.

In the event of the death of the other family member, one (1) of the days mentioned above may be taken on the day of the burial/wake/ceremony.

(c) For any relatives not mentioned in the above 9.03 (a) or (b), to be entitled up to one (1) day leave to attend a funeral without loss of pay.

The leave of absence will not be charged against paid <u>health</u> leave or annual vacation entitlement.

# 9.04 Special Leave Without Pay

Special leave without pay will only be considered provided that any unbooked vacation entitlement (excluding supplementary vacation), accrued days in lieu of statutory holidays, floater days and overtime have been used.

- (a) When the reasonable requirements of the Employer's services will permit, any employee hereunder, upon written application to the Employer, may, if approved in writing, by the Employer, be granted a leave of absence for a period of up to thirty (30) working days. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Under such leave, the employee shall retain and continue to accrue seniority.
- Such leaves may be extended for additional periods of up to thirty (30) working days when approved by the Employer, in writing, and seniority will accrue during such extension.
   Employees on leave under Article 9.04, that extends past thirty (30) working days, shall have their vacation pay pro-rated as a percentage of gross earnings.
- (c) Special leave without pay for educational purposes will not require a full-time regular employee to exhaust unbooked vacation entitlement, accrued days in lieu of statutory holidays, floater days and overtime banks prior to the special leave without pay being granted. The above 9.04 (a) still applies with the exception of the educational leave being capped at two (2) weeks per calendar year.

### 9.05 Jury Duty

An employee summoned to Jury Duty or a subpoenaed witness shall be paid wages amounting to the differences between the amount paid them for jury service and the amount they would have earned, had they worked on such days. Employees on Jury Duty shall furnish the Employer with such statements of earnings as the Courts may supply. Employees shall return to work within a reasonable period of time. They shall not be required to report if less than two (2) hours of their normal shift remains to be worked. Total hours on Jury Duty and actual work on the job in the office in one (1) day, shall not exceed seven (7) hours for the purpose of establishing the basic work day. Any time worked in the office in excess of the combined total of seven (7) hours, shall be considered overtime and paid as such.

# 9.06 Family Responsibility Leave

These are for emergencies for children or other family members residing in the home, where no one else is capable of caring for these family members.

Such time taken shall be charged against <u>Health</u> Leave under Article 10.02(a). One (1) day equals seven hours.

### 9.07 Compassionate Care Leave

The Employer shall grant, upon request, unpaid Compassionate Care Leave in accordance with the Employment Standards Amendment Act (April 27, 2006).

### 9.08 Transition Leave

An employee who provides a certificate from a medical practitioner confirming that an employee requires a leave of absence in order to undergo the medical or non-medical procedure(s) related to a physical and/or emotional change from one gender to another shall be granted a leave of absence without loss of service or seniority and will be eligible for sickness and accident coverage while absent.

Standard STD/LTD coverage will apply in accordance with provincial legislation and the current insurance policy/coverage at that time.

# 9.09 Domestic or Sexual Violence Leave

The Employer will grant an employee up to ten (10) days of paid leave to deal with issues related to domestic violence, Notwithstanding the above, the Employer also agrees that requests for unpaid leaves of absence submitted by the employees in order for them to deal with issues related to domestic violence shall not be unreasonably denied.

In addition, the Employer will grant in each calendar year:

- (a) Up to ten (10) days unpaid leave, in units of one or more days in either a nonsequential or sequential period, and
- (b) In addition to the period of time referred to above, up to fifteen (15) weeks of unpaid leave.

It is further agreed that privacy and confidentiality should be maintained and the Union and/or Employer should not disclose more personal information than is reasonably necessary to protect workers from injury. This means sharing only reasonably necessary information and only with those who need to know. All personal information concerning domestic violence should be kept confidential and no information should be kept on the employee's personnel file without their express written permission.

# ARTICLE 10 — BENEFIT PLANS and HEALTH DAYS

10.01

(a)

- i) All full-time and part-time regular employees regularly scheduled to work sixty (60) hours per month or more shall become entitled to coverage for:
  - Medical
  - Dental
  - Extended Health, and
  - Employee and Family Assistance Program

All full-time and part-time regular employees regularly scheduled to work an average of fourteen (14) hours per week (which would mean sixty (60) hours per month or one hundred and eighty-two (182) hours per quarter) or more shall become entitled to coverage for:

- Basic Life Insurance
- Optional Life Insurance, and
- Accidental Death & Dismemberment Insurance

All full-time and part-time regular employees regularly scheduled to work a minimum of fourteen (14) hours per week or more shall become entitled to coverage for:

- Short Term, and
- Long Term Disability

If you do not maintain the minimum required work hours, you will not be eligible for disability benefits.

The above benefits to be administered by BC Credit Union Employee Benefits Trust, or equivalent. (Details of the Plans are contained in brochures provided by the Employer).

- ii) For the purpose of coverage of common-law spouses, the partners must have lived together for a term of one (1) year. Where any marital relationship is terminated, where they are no longer living together, the spouse is no longer an eligible dependant and coverage must be cancelled.
- iii) All Other Plans

On the completion of the three calendar months of employment.

- (b) The Employer shall pay one hundred (100%) per cent of the premiums for any of the following plans for which the employee is enrolled:
  - i) Extended Health Benefit Plan.
  - ii) Dental Plan.

Short-term and long-term disability remain as 100% employee paid.

Should Medical Service Plan of B.C. or similar service be re-introduced in B.C., the Employer shall pay one hundred (100%) per cent of the premiums. Such service shall be available on the first (1st) of the month following the starting date of employment.

(c) All employees shall receive a Health Care Spending Account (HCSA) in the amount of <u>five</u> hundred (\$500) per calendar year which may be spent on health, <u>vision</u>, or dental benefits as determined and adjudicated by the benefit provider.

### 10.02 Health Days for Casual Employees

All casual employees shall receive five paid heath days every calendar year. This entitlement will be amended according to any improvement in the Employment Standard Act.

All casual employees become eligible after ninety (90) calendar days of employment.

COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT: MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees, Local 378)

and Community Savings Credit Union TERM: July 1, 2022 to June 30,2026

# 10.03 Health Days for Full-time Regular Employees

Full-time regular employees who are unable to work because of illness shall receive pay on the following basis:

(a) All <u>Full Time Regular</u> employees on the payroll as at January 1st of each year will be given credit for twelve (12) days <u>health</u> leave for that year. New employees starting during the year shall receive <u>five (5) paid health leave days per year plus any additional paid health leave earned after 5 months of employment calculated at the rate of one (1) day per month worked up to the twelve (12) days.</u>

<u>Upon</u> completion of their probationary period they will be reimbursed for any lost wages due to illness, up to that year's maximum entitlement.

(b) Employees must bank days accrued to a maximum of <u>five (5)</u> days to cover the waiting period required for Short Term Disability coverage, <u>Article</u> 10.02 (c). <u>Health</u> days accumulated beyond the <u>five (5)</u> day bank shall be paid out (one-half (½) day per full day accumulated) in the following January of each year. Upon termination banked days accumulated and the current years pro rated days of entitlement shall be paid out on the basis of one-half (½) day for each full day accumulated.

All employees will have a voluntary option to bank up to 10 days.

Health days shall be banked from the unused <u>health</u> leave at each year end. They shall be banked at the rate of three (3) days per year and at the employee's option more may be used to refill the bank. Upon separation from employment, the employee shall be paid for one-half (½) of their unused <u>health</u> leave earned plus one-half (½) of their <u>health</u> leave banked.

- (c) Upon becoming eligible for Short Term Disability, an employee will receive 66 2/3% of the first \$3000 of regular earnings plus 45% of the next \$3000 of regular earnings plus 40% of regular earnings in excess of \$6000, up to \$15000 per month from the insurance plan for the duration of illness in accordance with the provisions of the plan. It is the responsibility of the employee to complete and file the necessary application forms to receive payment.
- (d) The employee, upon request of the Employer, shall provide proof of illness which involves paid leave. The <u>Employer</u> will reimburse the reasonable cost of up to two (2) medical certificates (doctor's notes) annually.
- (e) It is understood that employees granted twelve (12) days "credit" on January 1st of each year. Upon termination of employment an employee having used more <u>health</u> days than "earned" (as per Article 10.1 (a)) shall be required to reimburse the Employer from <u>their</u> final pay.
- (f) While on Short Term Disability employees must ensure that premium payments are continued. The Employer shall continue to pay the premiums for benefits provided for in <a href="Article">Article</a> 10.01(a), (except Short Term Disability and Long-Term Disability) during the Short Term Disability period.

# 10.04 Retirement Plan

(a) Full-time and Regular Part-Time Employees

Effective July 1, 2018 the Employer agrees to pay twelve (12%) percent of the employee's monthly salary into a Registered Retirement Savings Plan for each month worked, commencing upon completion of the probationary period.

Effective July 1, 2019 the Employer agrees to pay twelve and a half (12.5%) percent of the employee's monthly salary into a Registered Retirement Savings Plan for each month worked, commencing upon completion of the probationary period.

Effective July 1, 2020 the Employer agrees to pay thirteen (13%) percent of the employee's monthly salary into a Registered Retirement Savings Plan for each month worked, commencing upon completion of the probationary period.

- (b) When a part-time employee moves into full-time employment, their accrued service credits shall be carried towards full-time employment with regards to enrolment in the Credit Union RRSP provision, in this Agreement.
- (c) Each employee shall have the option to pay additional sums into the Plan, up to the maximum allowable under the Income Tax Act. Money may not be removed from the RRSP's while an employee of the Credit Union.
- (d) Funds on deposit under Article 10.03 may be used for First Time Home Buyers and the Life Long Learning Plan, as allowed by Revenue Canada, on the basis that funds used from the Credit Union must be re-paid to the Credit Union.

Funds on deposit (including non-registered term deposits) shall be paid at one-half percent (½%) premium on the posted rate (capped at the 'wholesale rate') following ratification and upon maturity. This shall apply on terms of one (1) to five (5) years only including promotions. If an employee withdraws funds from an RRSP to purchase a home under the Home Buyers Plan and finances the purchase at another institution, the standard penalties for early withdrawal will apply.

- (e) Funds will be deposited to Community Savings Credit Union's standard variable Registered Retirement Savings Plan and the employee determines how they wish to invest these funds. The rate of interest will be Community Savings posted variable rate. Staff can negotiate "Bid" rates for these funds. Interest is compounded semi-annually.
- (f) Employee's will have access to Mutual Funds.

#### ARTICLE 11 — SALARY POLICY

#### 11.01

Employees, as defined in Article 5, shall be paid in accordance with the salary schedule for their positions as specified in Appendix "A" which is part of this Agreement. The steps in the salary ranges are the minimum amounts to be paid an employee in accordance with 11.05 of this Article and shall not be construed to mean an employee may not be advanced to the next step in their salary range before having the required service.

# 11.02 Job Descriptions

Are written with the intent to set forth the general duties and requirements of the job and to indicate the level of skill required and shall not be construed as imposing any restrictions on the right of the Employer to create a new job or to assign duties to employees other than those specifically mentioned in job descriptions, providing always, that if the assignment of such duties changes the job content sufficiently to justify a review of the job rate, the Local Union shall be notified and a revised rate may be negotiated between the Parties. The effective date for the new rate shall be that date the job was submitted for review.

The Employer shall post all current job descriptions on its internal intranet.

In the event of any objections, such objections will be referred Alternate Dispute Resolution as provided below:

The objection will be referred to a mediator who will investigate the matter, define the issue(s) in the difference and make recommendations to settle the difference.

#### 11.03

When a new position is established or the duties of an existing position are significantly changed, the Employer shall set an interim salary and category for such position and notify the Union. The Union, at its discretion, may negotiate the salary and category and if agreement cannot be reached, the matter may be referred to arbitration as provided in this Agreement.

### 11.04 Promotional Increases

Upon promotion, an employee will be paid at a step in the higher salary range which will ensure an increase of at least sixty (\$60.00) dollars per month.

# 11.05 Salary Progression

- (a) Employees shall move from step to step in their salary range upon completion of the following amounts of service at each step:
  - Start rate to three (3) months rate = three (3) months;
  - Three (3) months rate to twelve (12) months rate = nine (9) months;
  - Twelve (12) months rate to eighteen (18) months rate = six (6) months;
  - Eighteen (18) months rate to twenty-four (24) months rate = six (6) months:
  - Twenty-four (24) months rate to thirty (30) months rate = six (6) months;

- Thirty (30) months rate to thirty-six (36) months rate = six (6) months; *Time spent on disability leave shall not qualify as "service" under 11.05.
- (b) An employee assigned to a higher job classification or temporarily replacing another employee in such higher classification or working a combination of classifications, shall be paid at the higher rate for the period so employed. For the purpose of 11.05, selection of employees will be made on the basis of ability and seniority. This provision shall not apply for brief relief periods of less than one-half (½) day except that if an employee is required to work at a higher classification on a recurring basis, ie: each day, each week or each month, the higher rate of pay shall apply as provided in 11.04.
- (c) An employee who bids on a vacant position in a lower classification shall be paid at step in the salary range commensurate with their service. If the employee who bid on the lower classification position bids on their former higher classification position within 12 months the employee shall return to the step in the salary range which they held at the time of leaving.

# 11.06 Salary Policy on Recalls

- (a) Employees recalled to their former position or to a position having the same salary range shall receive their former salary plus any salary increments they would have become entitled to had they not been on layoff.
- (b) Employees recalled to a position in a salary range which is lower than for their former position shall be paid their former salary if it is not higher than the maximum rate for the lower position.
- (c) In the event that a trial period is unsuccessful, the following salary policy will apply:
  - The employee shall retain <u>their</u> salary if it is not beyond the maximum of the lower graded job. If the employee's salary is beyond the maximum of the lower grade job, it shall be reduced to the maximum.
- (d) Employees, who for reasons set out in Article 17, are placed in a position having a lower salary range than for their former position shall retain their salary. If their salary is higher than the range for the position, they shall be red-circled until such time as the difference between the maximum for the range and their salary is removed.

# 11.07 Training & Cross-Training

- (a) An employee assigned to a higher job classification on a temporary basis for the purposes of cross-training shall not be entitled to the higher rate salary and shall maintain <u>their</u> salary level of <u>their</u> regular position so long as the transfer to the cross-training position does not exceed sixty (60) working days.
- (b) The provision of cross-training will not be used or apply to an employee who is filling a vacancy and will not be used to replace incumbents.
- (c) A training bonus of \$2.00 per hour shall be paid to any employee who, in addition to their own duties, is expected to train another employee. This

training bonus is for employees that do not have a training function in their job description. The training is expected to be for a period of approximately one (1) month in duration. An employee paid this bonus shall be accountable and evaluated on the training provided. The trainer will be selected on their ability to train and not on seniority. It is the responsibility of the trainer to track the hours trained.

(d) The Employer shall give the trainer a scope of responsibilities and training duration.

# 11.08 In- charge Premium

- (a) An employee who, in the absence of a <u>manager</u> has been designated, for a maximum of six (6) weeks, to be "in charge", shall be paid an additional amount, at the <u>minimum of \$3.00 per hour</u>, for each full day that <u>the employee</u> is designated as being "in charge". Seniority shall not be suspended during this period.
- (b) <u>In-charge premium applies when there is no manager on site for four (4) or more hours.</u>

### ARTICLE 12 — JOB POSTING

#### 12.01

- (a) The Employer shall fill job vacancies from within the bargaining unit before hiring new employees, providing employees are available with the necessary qualifications to fill the vacant positions. Each vacancy shall be posted on the bulletin boards on the Employer's premises for at least five (5) working days, with a copy to the Local Union office and to each employee on the recall list, outlining job title, group classification and salary. Where a vacancy has not been filled from within the bargaining unit or from the recall list, the Union will have the right to refer qualified employees from its unemployed roster.
- (b) Upon completion of probation, an employee may bid on vacant positions which may involve a promotion, lateral transfer, or a lower classification.

A vacancy is not created where an employee in a branch is reclassified due to the assignment of extra responsibility in an existing position for a temporary period of six (6) months or less.

#### 12.02

- (a) It shall be the intent of the Employer to fill job vacancies from within the bargaining unit providing employees who apply for positions have the required qualifications. Preference in selection shall be by seniority.
- (b) All bids on posted job vacancies shall be, in writing, or on a form provided by the Employer. Applicants shall be notified, in writing, whether they have been selected or not.

### 12.03

Selection for job vacancies shall be made on the basis of ability to do the job and seniority, in that order. In the event two (2) or more employees have similar abilities, the employee with the greatest seniority shall be selected.

### **12.04**

An employee promoted to a higher rated position shall be on trial for the first thirty (30) working days. If during the first thirty (30) working days the employee is considered to be unsuitable, or considers themself unsuitable, the employee shall be returned to their former position at their former work location, where operationally feasible, or one of equal rank and shall be paid their former salary plus any increments which they may have been entitled to had the employee not been promoted.

Job postings will be posted with a minimum of five (5) working days from the release date to the closing date. Employees absent at time of posting may apply within one (1) week of posting closure. Employees shall be responsible for notifying the Employer of interest in various vacancies that may occur during vacation periods of two (2) or more weeks.

# 12.05 Job Sharing

Upon application by a full-time regular employee to job-share, the <u>Employer</u> shall, subject to the availability of a qualified part-time employee or the availability of another qualified full-time employee who is willing to share, divide the work of one (1) regular position between two (2) persons. The divided position shall be in contiguous days for each person, but shared in either one (1) day and four (4) days, or two (2) days and three (3) days.

In principle, the parties won't hold up a settlement pending the outcome of these details.

### ARTICLE 13 — LAYOFF and RECALL

# 13.01 Layoff

Should the Employer decide to reduce the number of office staff, the Employer shall meet with the Union Representative and the following procedure shall be adopted: the employee with the least amount of seniority in any position will be the first laid-off from that position. The employee may displace another employee in a position at the same or lower job level providing the employee has the qualifications to perform the job functions satisfactorily and has greater seniority than the employee to be displaced.

### 13.02

Regular employees shall be given notice or pay in lieu of notice as per the Employment Standards Act.

#### 13.03

Any regular employee with six (6) months or more of service who is laid-off due to lack of work or redundancy shall be placed on a recall list for a period of one (1) year.

# 13.04 Recall

Employees on the recall list shall have the right to return to a vacancy in their former position or to a position for which they are qualified providing no other employee with greater seniority is promoted or transferred to such vacant position. When such transfers or promotions occur, resulting in a vacant position, the employee on the recall list will be offered the resulting vacant position providing the employee is qualified.

### 13.05

- (a) Notice of recall to an employee on the recall list shall be sent by registered mail to the employee's last known address. An employee on the recall list may be bypassed when the employee fails to respond to the notice within five (5) calendar days of receiving it. However, an employee who is prevented from responding to a recall notice because of illness or other reason beyond the employee's control shall not lose such rights thereby, but such employee may be bypassed for the position available.
- (b) An employee bypassed as provided above will remain on the recall list for the remaining recall period.

# ARTICLE 14 - SENIORITY

# 14.01

Upon completion of the probationary period, employees shall be entitled to all rights and privileges of this Agreement and the employee's seniority shall be effective from the original date of employment.

### 14.02

Seniority shall mean length of continuous service with the Employer and its predecessors in the bargaining unit except that credit shall be given for all continuous service prior to certification of the bargaining unit.

#### 14.03

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, an employee who leaves the bargaining unit and subsequently returns will be considered a new employee from the date of rejoining the Union for purposes of seniority credit.

An Employee who accepts a temporary position to an excluded position with the Employer outside of the bargaining unit shall accrue seniority for a period not to exceed eighteen (18) consecutive months from the date of commencement of such work. Upon expiry of this time limit, and continuation in the position outside of the bargaining unit, the Employee shall lose all seniority accumulated under this Agreement. An Employee choosing to return to the bargaining unit will return to their most recently held position within the bargaining unit. An Employee shall only have the right to accrue seniority while working outside the bargaining unit one (1) time in any eighteen (18) consecutive month period. It is understood that the Employer will continue to remit Union dues paid by the employee, based on their former bargaining unit wage, during this period.

### 14.04

An employee laid-off and placed on the recall list under Article 13.03 will retain and continue to accumulate seniority during the period of lay-off.

### 14.05

No seniority shall accrue for short terms of temporary work except that temporary employees who attain regular status shall have seniority credited from date of entry as an employee of the Employer, as provided in Article 5.05.

### 14.06

An employee on leave of absence on Union business under Article 9, or on <u>health</u> leave and extended <u>health</u> leave under Article 10, will continue to accrue seniority.

#### 14.07

Seniority lists will be made available by the Employer at such times as may be required for the administration of this Agreement. Seniority lists shall also illustrate the current job classification and step for each employee.

# 14.08 Part-Time Regular Employees

Part-time employees shall be placed on the seniority list at a place commensurate with their accrued hours of service (including vacation time). This list shall be updated from time-to-time to reflect subsequent service for all employees.

# 14.09 Casual Employees

A casual employee reaching part-time or full-time regular status will have the full rights under this Collective Agreement for the new status based on the date <u>the</u> employee reaches regular status.

### **ARTICLE 15 — DISCHARGE, TERMINATION and SUSPENSION**

### 15.01

The Employer has the right to discharge or suspend an employee for just cause. The Employer will provide the employee with a statement, in writing, clearly establishing the reasons for such discharge.

A copy of the statement shall be given to the Union.

### 15.02

If a regular employee is terminated, except as provided in 15.01 above, said employee shall receive notice or pay in lieu of notice as per the Employment Standards Act.

# **15.03**

Any discipline which will become part of an employee's written record will be administered in the presence of a Job Steward unless the employee specifically requests that no Job Steward be present. Copies of such discipline will be issued to the employee involved and to the Union.

### 15.04

If, upon joint investigation by the Union and the Employer, or by decision of the Arbitrator appointed pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, it shall be found that an employee has been unjustly discharged, such employee shall be subject to the award of the said Arbitration or pursuant to the mutual findings of the Union and the Employer, reinstated to their former position without any loss of seniority

or rank or benefits, and shall be compensated by the Employer for all time lost retroactive to the date of discharge.

15.05

Employees are expected to provide the Employer with two (2) weeks notice of intention to terminate in order to provide adequate time to obtain a replacement.

### ARTICLE 16 — GENERAL

16.01

No work which is customarily performed by employees within the bargaining unit covered by this Agreement shall be sub-contracted by the Employer to any agency or person outside the bargaining unit except where work is of a short-term nature (<u>3 months</u> or less and on a non-recurring basis) where work requires high level technical skills not available within the bargaining unit. This does not limit the Employer from using the same agency or person for a different project. Work permit fees will be paid in lieu of union dues.

Managers or other employees outside of the bargaining unit shall not perform the duties normally, customarily or properly performed by employees within the bargaining unit, except in cases of emergency when bargaining unit members who can perform the required work are not available.

The Employer shall provide the Union a written notice outlining the commencement date and end date of a project that needs to be extended beyond three (3) months. The Parties shall discuss particulars of any extension. In the event that the parties cannot agree to particulars of the extension, the matter can be referred to arbitration.

16.02

Employees who are members of the Union shall be permitted to use their Union Label.

### 16.03 Picket Lines

It shall not be a violation of this Agreement or cause for discharge of any employee in the performance of <u>their</u> duties to refuse to cross a legal picket line. The Union shall notify the Employer as soon as possible of the existence of such picket lines.

### 16.04 Bulletin Board

Will be made available to the Union on the Employer's premises for the purpose of posting notices relating to general Union activities.

# 16.05 No Strikes or Lockouts

The Employer shall not cause or direct any lockout of employees during the life of this Agreement; and neither the Union nor any representative thereof, nor any employee shall in any way authorize, encourage or participate in any strike walkout, suspension of work or slow down on the part of any employee or group of employees during the life of this Agreement.

#### 16.06 Personnel File

Employees will have access to their individual personnel files. Employees requesting access will give written notice to the <u>People & Culture team</u> three (3) days prior to the date on which they wish to access their individual file located at the Corporate Office. This notice will be signed by the <u>People & Culture Leader</u> or <u>their</u> designate and then returned to the employee.

A member of Management will have the right to be present while the employee has access to the personnel file. No personnel file will be removed from the <u>E</u>mployer's offices.

# 16.07

- 1. Consumer Loans See Appendix "D"
- 2. Mortgage Loans See Appendix "D"
- 3. Service Charges and Commissions
  The Employer will provide an outline of those items covered under 16.07 from the Policy Manual (see Appendix "C").

All above loans must fall within the lending policies of the Credit Union.

# 16.08 Robbery or Hold-Up

- (a) In the event of a robbery or hold-up, an employee shall be entitled to professional counselling as provided in the Employee and Family Assistance Plan.
- (b) The Employer agrees that requests from regular part-time employees and full-time employees for time off due to post-traumatic stress, resulting directly from involvement in robbery or hold-up, will be considered by the Employer for the balance of the day on which the incidence occurred, plus the following day, without loss of pay.
- (c) Approval of such request will not be unreasonably withheld. The Employer and the Union agree sufficient staff must always be available to operate the branch and time off requests, refused, due to staffing restraints will not be considered unreasonable.
- (d) Additional time off, if required, shall be deemed <u>health</u> leave under Article 10.02.

### 16.09 Lapel Pins / Decals

Union members may wear a Union lapel pin and the Credit Union agrees to display an appropriate decal in a mutually agreeable location on the premises.

### 16.10

Reviews will be conducted to ensure employees understand how they are performing. Reviews will be completed by the immediate supervisor and manager and will be reviewed by the People & Culture team. The performance reviews will be based on overall job performance, including sales.

Where employees have member contact, sales calls, cross-selling and tracking of sales will be expected. Such tracking of reports will be used only for weekly coaching sessions so that the Credit Union can measure and provide feedback for each employee on the level of service delivered. This will help the employee to identify opportunities for sales / service and create action plans. Regular review of tracking reports will be done with staff regarding their progress.

The <u>Employer</u> further agrees that no individual quotas will be set.

# 16.11 Corporate Office Parking

The Employer agrees to provide five (5) parking passes at no cost to the employees.

# 16.12 Surrey Branch Parking

The Employer agrees to provide three (3) parking passes at no cost to the employees. One (1) pass will be for the use of the Centralized Lending Department and two (2) passes for the use of the Surrey Branch employees.

The Employer will work with the Landlord to source alternative parking options, on an as-needed basis, upon request from the bargaining unit staff.

### ARTICLE 17 — TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE and SEVERANCE PAY

17.01

The Employer will provide the Union with at least six (6) months notice of intention to introduce automation, equipment or procedures which might result in displacement or reduction of personnel or in changes of job classification.

17.02

Employees becoming redundant due to new equipment or procedures shall be eligible for retraining to equip them for the operation of such new equipment or procedure or to qualify for new positions. Such retraining will be provided by the Employer without cost and without loss of pay to the affected employee(s).

17.03

In cases where employees are not trainable for available positions or where other positions with the Employer are not available, the employee shall elect for termination of employment or shall elect to be placed on the recall list. An employee on recall under 17.03 shall receive all the benefits which the employee has accrued during employment at the end of the recall period or at such earlier time as the employee may elect to terminate.

17.04

A specified extension of the recall period, where recall is applied under the foregoing 17.03, may be mutually agreed by the employee and the Employer, subject to written approval by the Union.

# 17.05 Severance Pay

Shall be paid to employees laid-off because of down-sizing, elimination of a parttime position, new procedures, automation, consolidation, mergers or suspension of business. The amount of severance pay shall be two (2) weeks at the employee's current regular salary for each year of service.

# 17.06 Retirement Pay

Retirement pay shall be paid to employees upon retirement at the approved retirement ages of 55 or older, as follows:

- Age 55 amount of retirement pay shall be one (1) week at the employee's current regular salary for each full year of service to a maximum of 50% of thirteen (13) weeks
- Age 56 amount of retirement pay shall be one (1) week at the employee's current regular salary for each full year of service to a maximum of 60% of thirteen (13) weeks
- Age 57 amount of retirement pay shall be one (1) week at the employee's current regular salary for each full year of service to a maximum of 70% of thirteen (13) weeks
- Age 58 amount of retirement pay shall be one (1) week at the employee's current regular salary for each full year of service to a maximum of 80% of thirteen (13) weeks
- Age 59 amount of retirement pay shall be one (1) week at the employee's current regular salary for each full year of service to a maximum of 90% of thirteen (13) weeks
- Age 60+ amount of retirement pay shall be one (1) week at the employee's current regular salary for each full year of service to a maximum of 100% of thirteen (13) weeks

For purposes of succession planning, employees are encouraged to give three (3) months' notice of retirement.

### ARTICLE 18 — GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

#### 18.01

"Grievance" means any difference or dispute concerning the interpretation, application, administration or alleged violation of this collective Agreement whether between the Employer and any employee or employees bound by this collective Agreement or between the Employer and the Union.

# 18.02

Grievances or Complaints shall be settled in the following manner:

- (a) If the employee has a grievance against the Employer, the procedure for settlement shall commence with Step 1.
- (b) If the Employer or the Union has a grievance, the procedure for settlement shall commence at Step 3.

#### STEP 1:

The employee involved shall first take up the grievance with the supervisor directly in charge of the work within ten (10) working days of the circumstances

giving rise to the grievance. The employee may be accompanied by a Job Steward or in the Steward's absence, a representative of the Union.

#### STEP 2:

If the grievance is not satisfactorily settled at Step 1, the employee and Job Steward or Representative shall submit the grievance, in writing, to the Office manager or Personnel manager as designated by the Employer, within the next ten (10) working days.

### **STEP 3 (a):**

If a satisfactory settlement is not reached at step 2, the grievance shall be referred within the next ten (10) working days to the Representative(s) of the Union and the Representative(s) of the Employer. Failing settlement within a further ten (10) working days of receipt of notice, the dispute shall be referred to arbitration as set forth in Article 19.

# STEP 3 (b):

In the event a grievance is initiated by the Employer or the Union, the Party initiating the grievance shall notify the other Party, in writing, of the nature of the dispute, and such notice shall be given within ten (10) working days of the circumstances giving rise to the grievance unless the Parties agree to an extension of time. Failing settlement within ten (10) working days of receipt of notice, the dispute may be referred to arbitration as set forth in Article 19.

# 18.03

The time limits set forth in this Article may be extended by mutual agreement between the Union and the Employer.

Except where there is mutual agreement, a grievance not advanced to the next Step under 18.02 or Article 19 within the time limits specified, shall be considered abandoned, and all further recourse to the grievance procedure forfeited.

# **ARTICLE 19 — ARBITRATION**

### 19.01

- (a) Where any difference arises between the Parties as to the interpretation, application, operation or alleged violation of this Agreement, including any question as to whether the matter is arbitrable or not, the matter may be referred by either Party to Arbitration within twenty (20) days of the decision at Step 3.
- (b) The Parties to this Agreement hereby agree to use the services of a single Arbitrator as a means of settling grievances and disputes.

### 19.02

The Party desiring arbitration under this Article will notify the other Party, in writing, in accordance with the provisions of Step 3 of Article 18.02. The notice shall set out the question(s) in the opinion of the Party seeking arbitration to be arbitrated.

19.03

The Parties to the dispute will thereupon meet within five (5) working days to decide upon an Arbitrator. Failing agreement upon a person willing to act, either Party may apply to the Collective Agreement Arbitration Bureau of the Province of British Columbia to appoint an Arbitrator.

19.04

Upon agreed appointment of an Arbitrator, the Arbitrator shall hear the Parties, settle the terms of the question(s) to be arbitrated if necessary, and make <u>their</u> Award, in writing, to each of the Parties and the Award shall be final and binding on the Parties. The Arbitrator shall not be vested with the power to change, modify or alter any of the terms of this Agreement.

19.05

Each Party shall pay their own costs and expenses of the arbitration and one-half (1/2) the remuneration and expenses of the Arbitrator.

<u>The time limits fixed in the arbitration procedure may be altered by mutual consent of the parties.</u>

### **ARTICLE 20 — HEALTH and SAFETY**

If a health and safety meeting is scheduled on a part-time employee's day off, the employee shall be paid for the meeting time and for any preparation time required.

The parties will discuss and finalize a work alone policies and procedures. The finalized copy will be provided to all employees.

20.01

The Employer and the Union agree to maintain required standards of safety and health in the workplace in order to prevent injury and illness.

20.02

Under no circumstances will an employee be required or assigned work under dangerous conditions, where there is danger to person or property, or in violation of the law relating to the safety of people or equipment.

20.03

A joint Health and Safety Committee will be established in accordance with the requirements of the Occupational Health and Safety Regulation. The Committee will be composed of two (2) employee representatives and two (2) Employer representatives. The joint Health and Safety Committee shall submit its report, which includes recommendations to the Standing Committee on a monthly basis.

The Employer is committed to providing a safe and healthy environment and promoting a positive and proactive attitude towards the safety of employees.

#### ARTICLE 21 — EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS

The Employer agrees that any provision of the Employment Standards Act, not specifically covered by this Collective Agreement or which is superior to a provision of this Collective Agreement as it applies to a particular group of employees, shall be deemed to be a part of this Collective Agreement for that particular group of employees.

# **ARTICLE 22 — DURATION**

#### 22.01

This Agreement will be in full force and effect on and after the 1st day of July 2022, to and including the 30th day of June 2026, and shall automatically be renewed from year-to-year thereafter unless either Party serves written notice of termination upon the other Party hereto, at least ninety (90) days prior to the 30th day of June 2022, or ninety (90) days prior to the 30th day of June in any year subsequent.

#### 22.02

It is mutually agreed by the Parties to exclude from this Agreement the operation of <u>Article</u> 50(2) and 50(3) of the Labour Relations Code.

Signed this 26th day of September, 2023.

# Signed on behalf of the Employer

Signed on behalf of the Union

Mike Schilling

Mike Schilling, President & CEO

Anny Chen, Union Representative

Unklan

Phillip Legg, Chair, Board of Directors

Dalell Amed, Director, Falent & Compensation

kirsten l'Anson

Kirsten I'Anson, Vice President People & Culture

E&OE

### APPENDIX "A" - JOB CLASSIFICATIONS

# TRAINEE

# **Group I**

Member Service Representative 1 Receptionist

# **Group II**

Member Service Representative 2 Loans Clerk Accounting Technician <u>Marketing Coordinator</u> Financial Services Administrator

# **Group III**

Senior Member Service Representative
Loans Interviewer / Member Service Representative 3
Accounts Payable Technician
Commercial Services Administrator
Senior MSR/ULO Support
Junior Accountant
Loans Clerk/Commercial Services Analyst

# **Group IV**

Loans Interviewer 4 Member Services Supervisor Senior Accounting Technician

# **Group V**

Commercial Loans/Risk Management Officer Loans Officer Senior Mortgage Underwriter

### **SYSTEMS**

Information Technology Support Specialist/Digital Content/UX Coordinator
Business/Quality Assurance Analyst
Programmer/Business Analyst
Senior Business/Quality Assurance Analyst
Programmer / Analyst / Operator
Senior Programmer / Business Analyst

TERM: July 1, 2022 to June 30,2026 Page 32

If the posted average Bank of Canada CPI rate (based on the 12-month period: May to May from the previous year) is greater than the July 1st stated pay increase, the Employer agrees to process an annual percentage increase of the difference, up to a maximum of 5% total annual increase.

## Salary Ranges + <u>5.00</u>% July 1, 20<u>22</u> to June 30, 20<u>23</u>

	Start	<u>90</u> Working <u>Days</u>	12 Months	18 Months	24 Months	30 Months	36 Months
TRAINEE:							
Monthly	\$3519.60	<u>N/A</u>	<u>N/A</u>	<u>N/A</u>	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	<u>N/A</u>
Annual	\$42235.20						
Hourly	\$23.21	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	<u>N/A</u>	<u>N/A</u>	N/A	N/A
PT Hourly Rate	<u>\$24.29</u>	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
GROUP I							
Monthly	\$3948.00	\$4235.70	\$4379.55	<u>\$4578.00</u>	<u>\$4780.65</u>	<u>\$5052.60</u>	N/A
Annual	\$47376.00	<u>\$50828.40</u>	<u>\$52554.60</u>	\$54936.00	<u>\$57367.80</u>	\$60631.20	
Hourly	\$26.03	\$27.93	\$28.88	\$30.19	<u>\$31.52</u>	\$33.32	<u>N/A</u>
PT Hourly Rate	\$27.25	<u>\$30.61</u>	\$31.6 <u>5</u>	\$33.09	\$34.55	<u>\$36.52</u>	N/A
GROUP II							
Monthly	\$4294.50	\$4599.00	\$4755.45	\$4947.60	\$5133.45	\$5401.20	N/A
Annual	\$51534.00	\$55188.00	\$57065.40	\$59371.20	\$61601.40	\$64814.40	
Hourly	\$28.32	\$30.32	\$31.36	\$32.62	\$33.85	\$35.61	N/A
PT Hourly	h C.	<b>.</b>	<b>A</b>	h	<b>.</b>	<b>.</b>	27/4
Rate	\$29.64	\$33.24	\$34.37	<u>\$35.76</u>	<u>\$37.10</u>	\$39.04	<u>N/A</u>
GROUP III	h 0 -	h .06	φ	Φ	h	<b>A</b>	φ
Monthly	\$4510.80	\$4860.45	\$5044.20	\$5197.50	\$5364.45	\$5521.95	\$5756.10
Annual	\$54129.60	\$58325.40	\$60530.40	\$62370.00	\$64373.40	\$66263.40	\$69073.20
Hourly PT Hourly	\$29.74	\$32.05	<u>\$33.26</u>	\$34.27	\$35.37	\$36.41	\$37.95
Rate	\$31.13	\$35.13	<u>\$36.46</u>	\$37.57	<u>\$38.77</u>	\$39.91	<u>\$41.60</u>
GROUP IV							
Monthly	\$4819.50	\$5170.20	\$5345.55	\$5499.90	\$5658.45	\$5831.70	<u>\$6088.95</u>
Annual	\$57834.00	\$62042.40	<u>\$64146.60</u>	\$65998.80	\$67901.40	<u>\$69980.40</u>	<u>\$73067.40</u>
Hourly	<u>\$31.78</u>	\$34.09	\$35.25	<u>\$36.26</u>	\$37.31	\$38.45	\$40.15
PT Hourly Rate	\$33.26	\$37.37	\$38.64	\$39.75	<u>\$40.90</u>	\$42.1 <u>5</u>	\$44.01
GROUP V							
Monthly	<u>\$5194.35</u>	\$5542.95	\$5719.35	\$5872.65	\$6034.35	\$6206.55	\$6463.80
Annual	\$62332.20	<u>\$66515.40</u>	\$68632.20	\$70471.80	<u>\$72412.20</u>	<u>\$74478.60</u>	<u>\$77565.60</u>
Hourly	\$34.25	\$36.55	\$37.71	\$38.72	\$39.79	\$40.92	<u>\$42.62</u>
PT Hourly Rate	\$35.85	\$40.06	\$41.34	\$42.44	\$43.61	\$44.86	<u>\$46.72</u>
	<u>\$4183.20</u>	<u>\$2116.80</u>	<u>\$1839.60</u>	<u>\$1940.40</u>	<u>\$2066.40</u>	<u>\$3087.00</u>	

The first step increase will incur at the end of the probationary period.

Signing bonus of \$500 at ratification.

# Salary Ranges + <u>3.00</u>% July 1, 20<u>23</u> to June <u>3</u>0, 20<u>24</u>

	Start	90 Working Days	12 Months	18 Months	24 Months	30 Months	36 Months
TRAINEE:							
Monthly	\$3639.27	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Annual	\$43671.20	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Hourly	\$24.00	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
PT Hourly Rate	<u>\$25.12</u>	<u>N/A</u>	<u>N/A</u>	<u>N/A</u>	<u>N/A</u>	<u>N/A</u>	<u>N/A</u>
GROUP I							
Monthly	\$4082.23	\$4379.71	\$4528.45	\$4733.6 <u>5</u>	\$4943.19	\$5224.39	N/A
Annual	<u>\$48986.78</u>	\$52556.57	\$54341.46	\$56803.82	\$59318.31	\$62692.66	N/A
Hourly	<u>\$26.92</u>	<u>\$28.88</u>	<u>\$29.86</u>	<u>\$31.21</u>	<u>\$32.59</u>	<u>\$34.45</u>	N/A
PT Hourly Rate	<u>\$28.18</u>	<u>\$31.65</u>	\$32.73	<u>\$34.21</u>	\$35.73	<u>\$37.76</u>	N/A
GROUP II							
Monthly	<u>\$4440.51</u>	\$4755.37	\$4917.14	\$5115.82	\$5307.99	\$5584.84	N/A
Annual	<u>\$53286.16</u>	\$57064.39	\$59005.62	\$61389.82	\$63695.85	\$67018.09	N/A
Hourly	\$29.28	<u>\$31.36</u>	\$32.42	\$33.73	<u>\$35.00</u>	<u>\$36.82</u>	N/A
PT Hourly Rate	\$30.6 <u>5</u>	\$34.37	\$35.54	<u>\$36.97</u>	<u>\$38.36</u>	<u>\$40.36</u>	<u>N/A</u>
GROUP III							
Monthly	<u>\$4664.17</u>	\$5025.71	\$5215.70	\$5374.22	\$5546.84	\$5709.70	<u>\$5951.81</u>
Annual	\$55970.01	\$60308.46	\$62588.43	<u>\$64490.58</u>	\$66562.10	\$68516.36	\$71421.69
Hourly	\$30.75	\$33.14	\$34.39	\$35.44	<u>\$36.57</u>	<u>\$37.65</u>	\$39.24
PT Hourly Rate	\$32.19	\$36.32	\$37.70	\$38.84	\$40.09	\$41.27	\$43.02
GROUP IV	ψ32.19	<u>ψ30.32</u>	Ψ3/./Ο	<u>ψ30.04</u>	<u>\$40.09</u>	<u>\$41.27</u>	<u>ψ43.02</u>
Monthly	\$4983.36	\$5345.99	\$5527.30	\$5686.90	\$5850.84	\$6029.98	\$6295.97
Annual	\$59800.36	\$64151.84	\$66327.58	\$68242.76	\$70210.05	\$72359.73	\$75551.69
Hourly	\$32.86	\$35.25	\$36.45	\$37.50	\$38.58	\$39.76	\$41.51
PT Hourly Rate	\$34.39	\$38.13	\$39.95	<u>\$41.10</u>	\$42.29	\$43. <u>58</u>	\$45. <u>50</u>
GROUP V							
Monthly	\$5370.96	\$5731.41	\$5913.81	\$6072.32	\$6239.52	\$6417.57	<u>\$6683.57</u>
Annual	\$64451.49	\$68776.92	\$70965.69	\$72867.84	\$74874.21	\$77010.87	\$80202.83
Hourly	<u>\$35.41</u>	\$37.79	\$38.99	\$40.04	\$41.14	\$42.32	<u>\$44.07</u>
PT Hourly Rate	\$37.07	<u>\$41.42</u>	<u>\$42.74</u>	\$43.8 <u>9</u>	<u>\$45.10</u>	<u>\$46.38</u>	<u>\$48.31</u>

# Salary Ranges + <u>2.00</u>% July 1, 20<u>24</u> to June 30, 20<u>25</u>

	Start	3 Months	12 Months	18 Months	24 Months	30 Months	36 Months
TRAINEE:							9
Monthly	\$3712.05	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Annual	\$44544.62	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Hourly	\$24.48	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
PT Hourly Rate	\$25.62	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
GROUP I							
Monthly	<u>\$4163.88</u>	<u>\$4467.31</u>	<u>\$4619.02</u>	\$4828.33	<u>\$5042.06</u>	<u>\$5328.88</u>	N/A
Annual	<u>\$49966.52</u>	<u>\$53607.70</u>	<u>\$55428.29</u>	\$57939.90	<u>\$60504.67</u>	\$63946. <u>51</u>	N/A
Hourly	<u>\$27.46</u>	<u>\$29.46</u>	<u>\$30.46</u>	<u>\$31.84</u>	<u>\$33.25</u>	\$35.14	N/A
PT Hourly Rate	<u>\$28.74</u>	\$32.29	<u>\$33.38</u>	<u>\$34.90</u>	<u>\$36.44</u>	<u>\$38.51</u>	<u>N/A</u>
GROUP II							
Monthly	<u>\$4529.32</u>	<u>\$4850.47</u>	<u>\$5015.48</u>	<u>\$5218.13</u>	<u>\$5414.15</u>	<u>\$5696.54</u>	<u>N/A</u>
Annual	<u>\$54351.88</u>	<u>\$58205.68</u>	\$60185.74	<u>\$62617.62</u>	<u>\$64969.76</u>	\$68358.45	<u>N/A</u>
Hourly PT Hourly	\$29.86	<u>\$31.98</u>	\$33.07	<u>\$34.41</u>	\$35.70	<u>\$37.56</u>	N/A
Rate	\$31.26	<u>\$35.06</u>	\$36.25	\$37.71	\$39.13	<u>\$41.17</u>	N/A
GROUP III							
Monthly	\$4757.45	<u>\$5126.22</u>	\$5320.02	<u>\$5481.70</u>	<u>\$5657.78</u>	<u>\$5823.89</u>	\$6070.84
Annual	\$57089.41	\$61514.63	\$63840.20	\$65780.39	\$67893.34	<u>\$69886.68</u>	<u>\$72850.12</u>
Hourly	\$31.37	\$33.80	\$35.08	\$36.14	\$37.31	\$38.40	\$40.03
PT Hourly Rate	\$32.84	<u>\$37.05</u>	\$38.45	\$39.62	\$40.89	\$42.09	<u>\$43.88</u>
<b>GROUP IV</b>							
Monthly	<u>\$5083.03</u>	\$5452.91	\$5637.84	\$5800.63	\$5967.85	<u>\$6150.58</u>	\$6421.89
Annual	\$60996.36	<u>\$65434.88</u>	\$67654.14	<u>\$69607.61</u>	<u>\$71614.25</u>	\$73806.93	\$77062.73
Hourly	\$33.52	\$35.95	\$37.17	<u>\$38.25</u>	\$39.35	<u>\$40.56</u>	\$42.34
PT Hourly Rate	<u>\$35.08</u>	\$39.41	<u>\$40.75</u>	<u>\$41.92</u>	\$43.13	<u>\$44.45</u>	<u>\$46.41</u>
GROUP V							
Monthly	<u>\$5478.38</u>	\$5846.04	\$6032.08	\$6193.77	<u>\$6364.31</u>	\$6545.92	<u>\$6817.24</u>
Annual	<u>\$65740.52</u>	<u>\$70152.46</u>	<u>\$72385.01</u>	<u>\$74325.20</u>	<u>\$76371.70</u>	<u>\$78551.09</u>	\$81806.89
Hourly	<u>\$36.12</u>	\$38.55	\$39.77	\$40.84	<u>\$41.96</u>	<u>\$43.16</u>	<u>\$44.95</u>
PT Hourly Rate	<u>\$37.81</u>	<u>\$42.25</u>	<u>\$43.60</u>	<u>\$44.77</u>	<u>\$46.00</u>	<u>\$47.31</u>	<u>\$49.27</u>

# Salary Ranges + <u>2.00</u>% July 1, 20<u>25</u> to June 30, 20<u>26</u>

	Start	90 Working Days	12 Months	18 Months	24 Months	30 Months	36 Months
TRAINEE:							
Monthly	\$3786.29	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Annual	\$45435.51	N/A	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	N/A	N/A
Hourly	\$24.97	N/A	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	N/A	N/A
PT Hourly		N/A	N/A	N/A	<u>N/A</u>	N/A	N/A
Rate	\$26.13						
GROUP I							
Monthly	<u>\$4247.15</u>	\$4556.65	<u>\$4711.40</u>	\$4924.89	<u>\$5142.90</u>	\$5435.45	<u>N/A</u>
Annual	\$50965.85	<u>\$54679.85</u>	<u>\$56536.85</u>	\$59098.70	<u>\$61714.76</u>	\$65225.44	N/A
Hourly	\$28.00	\$30.05	<u>\$31.07</u>	\$32.47	\$33.91	<u>\$35.84</u>	N/A
PT Hourly	¢00.01	f-00-00	£04.05	¢05.50	¢07.17	¢00.09	N/A
Rate GROUP II	\$29.31	\$32.93	<u>\$34.05</u>	\$35.59	\$37.17	<u>\$39.28</u>	N/A
Monthly	¢4610.01	£40.45 49	¢=11= =0	¢5000 50	¢==00.40	¢=910.45	N/A
-	\$4619.91	\$4947.48	\$5115.79	\$5322.50	\$5522.43	\$5810.47	
Annual	\$55438.92	\$59369.79	\$61389.45	\$63869.97	\$66269.16	\$69725.62	N/A
Hourly PT Hourly	<u>\$30.46</u>	<u>\$32.62</u>	\$33.73	\$35.09	\$36.41	<u>\$38.31</u>	N/A
Rate	<u>\$31.89</u>	<u>\$35.76</u>	<u>\$36.97</u>	<u>\$38.47</u>	\$39.91	<u>\$42.00</u>	N/A
GROUP III							
Monthly	<u>\$4852.60</u>	\$5561.96	\$5750.60	\$5916.65	\$6087.21	\$6273.59	\$6550.33
Annual	\$28231.19	<u>\$66743.58</u>	\$69007.22	\$70999.77	<u>\$73046.53</u>	\$75283.07	\$78603.98
Hourly	\$32.00	<u>\$36.67</u>	\$37.92	\$39.01	\$40.14	\$41.37	\$43.19
PT Hourly Rate	\$33.49	\$40.20	\$41. <u>56</u>	<u>\$42.76</u>	<u>\$44.00</u>	\$45.34	\$47.34
<b>GROUP IV</b>							
Monthly	\$5184.69	<u>\$5561.96</u>	\$5750.60	\$5916.65	\$6087.21	\$6273.59	\$6550.33
Annual	\$62216.29	\$66743.58	\$69007.22	\$70999.77	\$73046.53	\$75283.07	\$78603.98
Hourly	\$34.19	\$36.67	\$37.92	\$39.01	\$40.14	\$41.37	\$43.19
PT Hourly Rate	\$35.78	\$40.20	\$41. <u>56</u>	\$42.76	\$44.00	\$45.34	\$47.34
GROUP V							
Monthly	\$5587.94	\$5962.96	\$6152.73	\$6317.64	\$6491.59	\$6676.84	\$6953.59
Annual	\$67055.34	\$71555.51	\$73832.71	\$75811.70	\$77899.13	\$80122.11	\$83443.02
Hourly	\$36.85	\$39.32	\$40.57	\$41.66	\$42.80	\$44.03	\$45.85
PT Hourly Rate	\$38.57	\$43.10	\$44.47	\$45.66	\$46.92	\$48.26	\$50.26

# For explanation of part-time without benefits, see bottom of systems salaries.

**APPENDIX "A":** 

As compensation for loans/MSR3 with mutual fund licences who are required to sell mutual funds, they shall be paid at category 4 for the month of February at their appropriate service step.

It is understood that the selling of Mutual funds is not exclusively bargaining unit work.

TERM: July 1, 2022 to June 30,2026

If the posted average Bank of Canada CPI rate (based on the 12-month period: May to May from the previous year) is greater than the July 1st stated pay increase, the Employer agrees to process an annual percentage increase of the difference, up to a maximum of 5% total annual increase.

Salary Ranges + 5.00% July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 Information Systems Department

Job Title	Start	a Months	12 Months	18 Months	24 Months	30 Months	36 Months
Information Technology	Start	3 Months	Months	Months	Months	Months	Months
Support							
Specialist/ <u>Digital</u>							
Content/UX Coordinator	<u>\$5187.00</u>	<u>\$5393.85</u>	<u>\$5601.75</u>	<u>\$5813.85</u>	\$6022.80	\$6229.65	\$6437.55
Annual	\$62244.00	\$64726.20	\$67221.00	\$69766.20	\$72273.60	\$74755.80	\$77250.60
Hourly	\$34.20	\$35.57	\$36.94	\$38.33	\$39.71	<u>\$41.08</u>	\$42.45
PT Hourly Rate	\$35.80	\$37.23	\$38.66	\$40.13	\$41.57	\$43.00	\$44.43
Business /Quality							
Assurance Analyst	\$5580.75	\$5789.70	\$5999.70	\$6208.65	\$6417.60	\$6626.55	\$6834.45
Annual	\$66969.00	\$69476.40	\$71996.40	\$74503.80	\$77011.20	\$79518.60	\$82013.40
Senior Business /							
Quality Assurance/Operator	\$6514.20	\$6721.05	\$6933.15	¢=141.05	¢=0.47.00	\$7594.65	\$7764.75
Annual				\$7141.05	\$7347.90		
Programmer /Business	<u>\$78170.40</u>	<u>\$80652.60</u>	\$83197.80	\$85692.60	\$88174.80	<u>\$91135.80</u>	\$93177.00
Analyst/Operator							
Programmer/Business							
<u>Analyst</u>							
Application Administrator							
Administrator Full Stack Developer							
-	<u>\$6594.00</u>	\$6800.85	<u>\$7009.80</u>	\$7217.70	<u>\$7426.65</u>	<u>\$7635.60</u>	<u>\$7843.50</u>
Annual							
	\$79128.00	\$81610.20	\$84117.60	\$86612.40	\$89119.80	\$91627.20	\$94122.00
Senior Systems Network							
Administrator	φ 0	h-66-	φ-0	<b>40</b>	Φ0	φ0 · C =	<b>406-1-</b>
Annual	<u>\$7428.75</u>	<u>\$7635.60</u>	<u>\$7843.50</u>	<u>\$8051.40</u>	<u>\$8259.30</u>	\$8467.20	\$8674.05
	\$89145.00	\$91627.20	\$94122.00	<u>\$96616.80</u>	\$99111.60	\$101606.40	\$104088.60
Senior Programmer /							
Business Analyst	<u>\$7975.80</u>	<u>\$8187.90</u>	\$8392.65	<u>\$8603.70</u>	\$8809.50	<u>\$9019.50</u>	<u>\$9231.60</u>
Annual							
	<u>\$95709.60</u>	\$98254.80	\$100711.80	\$103244.40	\$105714.00	\$108234.00	<u>\$110779.20</u>

The first step increase will incur at the end of the probationary period.

Signing bonus of \$500 at ratification.

Salary Ranges + 3.00% July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 Information Systems Department

Job Title	Start	3 Months	12 Months	18 Months	24 Months	30 Months	36 Months
Information Technology	Start	<u>3</u> Worths	Wonths	Worths	Wolfins	Worths	Wolting
Support Specialist/ <u>Digital</u>							
Content/UX Coordinator	\$5363.36	\$5574.24	\$5792.21	\$6011.52	<u>\$6227.58</u>	<u>\$6441.46</u>	\$6656.43
Annual	\$64360.30	\$66926.89	\$69506.51	\$72138.25	\$74730.90	\$77297.50	\$79877.12
Hourly	<u>\$35.36</u>	<u>\$36.77</u>	\$38.19	\$39.64	<u>\$41.06</u>	\$42.47	\$43.89
PT Hourly Rate	\$37.02	\$38.49	\$39.98	\$41.49	<u>\$42.98</u>	<u>\$44.46</u>	<u>\$45.94</u>
Business /Quality Assurance Analyst	<u>\$5770.50</u>	\$5986. <u>55</u>	<u>\$6203.69</u>	<u>\$6419.74</u>	<u>\$6635.80</u>	\$68 <u>5</u> 1.8 <u>5</u>	<u>\$7066.82</u>
Annual							
	\$69245.95	<u>\$71838.60</u>	\$744444.28	\$77036.93	<u>\$79629.58</u>	\$82222.23	\$84801.86
Senior Business / Quality							
Assurance/Operator	<u>\$6735.68</u>	\$6949.57	<u>\$7168.88</u>	\$7383.85	<u>\$7597.73</u>	\$7852.87	\$8028.75
Annual							
	\$80828.19	<u>\$83394.79</u>	\$86026.53	\$88606.15	\$91172.74	\$94234.42	\$96345.02
Programmer /Business Analyst/Operator Programmer/Business Analyst Application	<u> </u>	ΨΟ.,1,1,34-1/2	<u> </u>	φοσσο	<u> </u>	<del></del>	<u> </u>
Administrator							
Full Stack Developer	<u>\$6818.20</u>	<u>\$7032.08</u>	\$7248.13	<u>\$7463.10</u>	<u>\$7679.16</u>	<u>\$7895.21</u>	\$8110.18
Annual							
	\$81818.35	84384.95	\$86977.60	\$89557.22	<u>\$92149.87</u>	\$94742.52	\$97322.15
Senior Systems Network Administrator	<u>\$7681.33</u>	\$78 <u>95.21</u>	<u>\$8110.18</u>	\$8 <u>325.15</u>	<u>\$8540.12</u>	<u>\$8755.08</u>	<u>\$8968.97</u>
Annual							
	\$92175.93	\$94742.52	\$97322.15	\$99901.77	\$102481.39	\$105061.02	\$107627.61
Senior Programmer / Business Analyst Annual	\$8246.98	\$8466.29	<u>\$8678.00</u>	\$8896.23	\$9109.02	<u>\$9326.16</u>	<u>\$9545.47</u>
	\$98963.73	\$101595.46	\$104136.00	\$1067 <u>5</u> 4.71	\$109308.28	<u>\$111913.96</u>	<u>\$114545,69</u>

Salary Ranges + <u>2.00</u>% July 1, 20<u>24</u> to June 30, 20<u>25</u> Information Systems Department

Job Title	Start	3 Months	12 Months	18 Months	24 Months	30 Months	36 Months
Information Technology	Start	<u>a</u> months	Months	Worths	Months	Months	Months
Support Specialist/Digital Content/UX Coordinator	¢5.450.60	¢=600 =0	¢=009.0=	\$6101.75	¢6050.10	¢6==0 00	¢6760.00
Annual	\$5470.63 \$65647.50	\$5688.79 \$68265.43	\$5908.05 \$70896.64	\$6131.75 \$73581.02	\$6352.13 \$76225.52	\$6570.29 \$78843.45	\$6763.29 \$81474.66
Hourly	\$36.07	\$37.51	\$38.96	\$40.43	\$41.88	\$43.32	\$44.77
PT Hourly Rate	\$37.76	\$39.26	\$40.78	\$42.32	\$43.84	\$45.35	\$46.86
Business /Quality	<del>\$3/./0</del>	<u>\$39.20</u>	\$40./8	<u>\$42.32</u>	<u>\$43.04</u>	₹45-35	<u>\$40.80</u>
Assurance Analyst	\$5885.91	\$6106.28	\$6327.76	\$6548.14	\$6768.51	\$6988.89	\$7208.16
Annual							
	\$70630.86	\$73275.37	<u>\$75933.16</u>	<u>\$78577.67</u>	\$81222.17	\$83866.68	\$86497.89
Senior Business / Quality					-		
Assurance/Operator Annual	<u>\$6870.40</u>	<u>\$7088.56</u>	<u>\$7312.25</u>	<u>\$7531.52</u>	<u>\$7749.68</u>	\$8009.93	\$8189.33
Ailiuai							
	<u>\$82444.76</u>	<u>\$85062.68</u>	<u>\$8747.06</u>	\$90378.27	<u>\$92996.20</u>	<u>\$96119.11</u>	<u>\$98271.92</u>
Programmer /Business Analyst/Operator							
Programmer/Business Analyst							
<b>Application</b>							
Administrator Full Stack Developer							
Fun Stack Developer	φ60=4=6	ф <b>т</b> .то то	ф <b>т</b> ооо 10	Φ=610.06	Φ=900 = 4	ΦΩοπο 11	ф9ото о9
Annual	<u>\$6954.56</u>	<u>\$7172.72</u>	\$7393.10	<u>\$7612.36</u>	<u>\$7832.74</u>	\$8053.11	\$8272.38
			+00				
Senior Systems Network	<u>\$83454.72</u>	\$86072.65	\$88717.15	<u>\$91348.37</u>	<u>\$93992.87</u>	<u>\$96637.38</u>	<u>\$99268.59</u>
Administrator							
Ammuol	\$7834.95	\$8053.11	<u>\$8272.38</u>	<u>\$8491.65</u>	<u>\$8710.92</u>	\$8930.19	<u>\$9148.35</u>
Annual	\$0.4010.45	\$96637.38	\$99268.59	\$101899.81	¢10.4501.00	\$107162.24	\$109780.16
Senior Programmer /	\$94019.45	<u>\$90037.38</u>	<u> </u>	<u>φ101099.81</u>	\$104531.02	<u>φ10/102,24</u>	\$109/00.10
Business Analyst	\$8411.92	\$8635.61	\$8851.56	\$9074.15	\$9291.20	\$9512.69	<u>\$9736.38</u>
Annual							
	<u>\$100943.00</u>	\$103627.37	<u>\$106218.72</u>	\$108889.80	<u>\$111494.44</u>	\$114152.24	<u>\$116836.61</u>

Salary Ranges + <u>2.00</u>% July 1, 20<u>25</u> to June 30, 20<u>26</u> Information Systems Department

Annual \$6	5580.04 56960.45 66.79	\$5802.56 \$69630.74 \$38.26	\$6026.21 \$72314.58	Months \$6254.39	<b>Months</b> \$6479.17	<b>Months</b> \$6701.69	36 Months \$6925.35
Technology Support Specialist/Digital Content/UX Coordinator \$5 Annual \$6	66960.45 36.79	<u>\$69630.74</u>	-	\$6254.39	\$6479.17	\$6701.69	<u>\$6925.35</u>
Content/UX Coordinator \$5 Annual \$6	66960.45 36.79	<u>\$69630.74</u>	-	<u>\$6254.39</u>	<u>\$6479.17</u>	\$6701.69	<u>\$6925.35</u>
Coordinator \$5 Annual \$6	66960.45 36.79	<u>\$69630.74</u>	-	\$6254.39	\$6479.17	\$6701.69	<u>\$6925.35</u>
Annual \$6	66960.45 36.79	<u>\$69630.74</u>	-	<u>\$0254.39</u>	\$04/9.1/	\$0/01.09	<u>\$0925.35</u>
Hourly:	36.79		<u>\$72314.58</u>				
Hounky	36.79		<u>\$72314.58</u>				
Hourly		\$38.26		<u>\$75052.64</u>	<u>\$77750.03</u>	\$80420.32	<u>\$83104.16</u>
	88.51	<u> </u>	<u>\$39.74</u>	<u>\$41.24</u>	<u>\$42.72</u>	<u>\$44.19</u>	<u>\$45.66</u>
PT Hourly Rate \$3		\$40.05	\$41.59	\$43.17	\$44.72	\$46.25	\$47.80
Business /Quality				. 10			,
	5003.62	\$6228.41	<u>\$6454.32</u>	<u>\$6679.10</u>	<u>\$6903.88</u>	<u>\$7128.67</u>	<u>\$7352.32</u>
Annual							
\$7	2043.48	\$74740.88	\$77451.83	\$80149.22	\$82846.62	\$85544.01	\$88227.85
Senior Business /	2043.40	<u>φ/4/40.00</u>	φ//431.03	φοσι49.22	φ02040.02	ψ05544.01	φου22/.03
Quality							
	<u>7007.80</u>	\$7230.33	<u>\$7458.50</u>	\$7682.15	<u>\$7904.68</u>	\$8170.12	\$8353.11
Annual							
\$8	34093.65	\$86763.94	\$89502.00	\$92185.84	\$94856.12	\$98041.49	\$100237.36
Programmer /Business							
Analyst/Operator							
<u>Programmer Business</u> Analyst							
Application							
Administrator							
Full Stack Developer							
\$7	093.65	<u>\$7316.17</u>	<u>\$7540.96</u>	<u>\$7764.61</u>	\$7989.39	\$8214.18	\$8437.83
Annual							
	3 <u>5123.81</u>	<u>\$87794.10</u>	\$90491.49	<u>\$93175.33</u>	\$95872.73	\$98570.12	<u>\$101253.96</u>
Senior Systems Network							
	991.65	\$8214.18	\$8437.83	\$8661.48	\$8885.14	\$9108.79	\$93 <u>31.31</u>
Annual	,, <u>,,,,</u>	+	+ > + 0/100	+2002.70	+ 2000,127	+ 12001/ 1	<del>+ ////-//-</del>
\$9	5889.84	\$98570.12	\$101253.96	\$103937.80	\$106621.64	\$109305.48	\$111975.77
Senior Programmer /					•		
	3580.16	\$8808.33	\$9028.59	\$9255.63	\$9477.03	\$9702.94	\$9931.11
Annual							
\$10	02961.86	\$105699.92	\$108343.10	\$111067.60	\$113724.33	\$116435.28	\$119173.34

HOURLY RATE: monthly divided by 151.66 (1820 hours of work in a year divided by 12

months, 151.666 x 12 months = 1820 hours).

**START RATE:** with benefits and without benefits = monthly times 98.75% divided by

151.666 times 6% (6%-stats+sick time), ie: \$2,456.00 monthly x 98.75%

divided by  $151.66 = $15.99 \times 6\% = $16.95$ .

PART-TIME RATE: calculation for part-time rate without benefits from 3 months step to 36

month step = monthly times 98.75% (1.25% less than 100% because of STD & LTD premiums) divided by 151.666 times 10%) ie: \$2,646.00 x

98.75% divided by 151.66 = \$17.23 x 10% = \$18.95.

TERM: July 1, 2022 to June 30,2026

#### APPENDIX "A-2"

#### **CASUAL RATE**

This rate will be payable to a casual employee for working on a call basis to handle – mailing, labelling, stuffing, posting, etc. This will be relative to the handling and processing of mail, special mailings, statements, annual and monthly items and any additional hours would be offered to part-time employees first.

#### **CALCULATION of HOURLY RATES**

Monthly salary x 12 / 1820 hours

#### * PART-TIME REGULAR EMPLOYEES

Hourly rate of pay shall be calculated by applying the above formula to the job group salary steps shown below and then increasing the result by six percent (6%) premium for the first <u>ninety</u> (90) working days with the premium increased to <u>eleven</u> percent (11%) thereafter, to compensate for statutory holiday pay, <u>paid</u> <u>health leave and floater days as set out in the Agreement.</u>

It is agreed that part-time employees shall be paid at the part-time rate.

#### TRAINEE

This is an entry position in which an employee performs routine clerical and teller duties under close supervision. Employee moves to start rate Group l Salary Range after not more than ninety (90) working days service.

#### APPENDIX "B" - SYSTEMS DEPARTMENT

All provisions of this Collective Agreement shall apply to the employees of the Systems Department except as modified or amended herein as follows:

#### **ARTICLE 6 — HOURS of WORK and OVERTIME**

#### 6.08 Systems Department Hours of Work and Overtime

The standard day shift shall consist of up to nine (9) hours per day, between the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 midnight.

- (a) Only when overtime is required will a systems employee work beyond nine (9) hours.
- (b) The standard work week shall consist of thirty-five (35) hours, Monday to Sunday inclusive.
- (c) Meal periods may be taken as one-half hour or one hour. The employee may elect to combine the two coffee breaks to make a meal period.
- (d) A rest period of ten (10) hours is to be provided between shifts. Only on an emergency fill-in basis would someone be requested to work a double shift.
- (e) Part-time employees shall be paid overtime rates after seven (7) hours of work.
- (f) In the event that any work is required after regular hours, the Employer will make temporary scheduling changes to meet the operational needs of the business; however, the Employer shall work with the employee to make mutually beneficial arrangements within the scope of the business requirements.
- (g) The Employer shall provide the employee a two-week notice before any permanent shift change.

#### 6.09 Consultation

Where an employee is contacted outside their normal working hours concerning a problem of work and a work action is required, a consultation premium will be paid as follows:

#### (a) First Call

- Two (2) hours or length of the call, whichever is greater, at the employee's overtime hourly rate.
- (b) If a second or successive telephone consultation takes place within two (2) hours of the start of the first call, it will be construed as being part of the first call, and therefore not be paid unless the combined time exceeds the minimum period in (a) above.
- (c) Calls made after two (2) hours from the start of the first call shall be paid for at the employee's overtime hourly rate for two (2) hours or the length of the call, whichever is greater.
- (d) Where the problem of work is a result of the consulted employee not having followed a pre-defined procedure, the telephone consultation premium shall not be paid.

## 6.10 Stand By Duty

A premium for Stand By duty equal to one (1) hours pay for each day that the person is required to be on stand by. <u>In the event that the Employer re-introduces shifts for the Systems Department:</u>

- (a) For time worked between 17:30 hours (5:30 p.m.) and 08:00 hours (8:00 a.m.) Monday through Thursday, the following premium will apply additional \$2.00 per hour.
- (b) For time worked between 18:30 hours (6:30 p.m.) Friday and 08:00 hours (8:00 a.m.) Saturday, the following premium will apply <u>additional</u> \$2.00 per hour.
- (c) For time worked between 15:30 hours (3:30 p.m.) Saturday and 08:00 hours (8:00 a.m.) Monday, the following premium will apply <u>additional</u> \$2.00 per hour.

#### APPENDIX "C" - SERVICE CHARGES

Community Savings Credit Union will provide the following service charges to all employees (permanent full-time and permanent part-time) once their probationary period has been successfully completed. Free service charges will also be provided to temporary and casual employees.

Each employee would be entitled to have chequing accounts exempt from service fees for staff

and/or staff chequing accounts joint with spouse (only).

Monthly chequing charges - personal chequing	Free		
Encoded cheque/pre-authorized debits clearing charges	Free		
ATM transactions at Community Savings Credit Union machines or at any ATM with the Exchange or Acculink logo	Free		
Interac transactions at other Canadian machines	Maximum four per month free		
*Personalized cheques	Free		
Utility bill payments over the counter on approved list only	Free		
Stop payments	Free		
Official Cheques and USD Drafts	Free		
Direct payment transactions	Free		
Staff variable RRSP — withdrawal privileges prior to August 1, 1991	Free (max. 2 per year)		
Self directed RRSP annual administration fee	Free		
Collabria Visa – Various Options  Discounted Annua and Interest Rate a in the prevailing "I Services Agreemen between "Collabria Financial Services and "Central 1 Creation"			
24-hour telephone banking including utility bills	Free		
Internet banking including utility bills	Free		
Withdrawals from chequing, Plan 24, special savings Free			
transfers from demand accounts	Free		
Membercard Free			
Email Money Transfers	Free		

^{*} All other service charges apply. Refer to Product Pricing Guide.
Employees are entitled to free use of one (1) small safety deposit box, subject to availability (if they request a larger safety deposit box, the employee would pay the difference).

Employees are entitled up to \$20,000. U.S. cash each calendar year at the staff buy rate providing these funds are for the employee's personal travel use only.

#### **Loan Related Items**

Appraisals	Cost
Discharges	Cost
Personal property registry	Cost
Registered residential mortgage modification on principal residence	Cost
Unregistered residential mortgage modification on principal residence	Free

MoveUP Union members will be entitled to all benefits under the Union Member Benefits Plan.

Regular charges apply to all other transactions.

Personalized Cheques.

Community Savings Credit Union will pay the cost of the least expensive cheques for staff in standard quantities available through the service provider as well as counter cheques at no cost.

#### APPENDIX "D" - STAFF LOANS

## **Eligibility**

Any employee applying for a personal loan, line of credit or mortgage benefit will:

- (a) Be a member in good standing in accordance with the Credit Union Act.
- (b) Be a permanent full-time or part-time employee of Community Savings Credit Union. (temporary employees are not eligible)
- (c) Have successfully completed the probation period of employment.
- (d) Must meet Community Savings Credit Union lending requirements.

In the event an employee leaves Community Savings Credit Union, the employee rate on their loan, line of credit or mortgage reverts to the negotiated rate, effective the end of their last month of employment.

If an employee is delinquent more than thirty (30) days on their mortgage or loan payments, Community Savings Credit Union reserves the right to revert the rate back to the contract rate. Once the mortgage or loan payments are made current the rate will be changed back to the preferred rate.

Terms and Conditions of Loans and Lines of Credit

A floating rate loan or line of credit, granted at Community Savings Credit Union's is Prime minus one-half (-1/2%) percent. The maximum loan or line of credit or a combination unsecured is not to exceed fifty thousand (\$50,000.00) dollars. The maximum line of credit secured will be the full amount the employee qualifies for. Staff members must qualify for this type of credit using same criteria applied to member applications.

All documents must be signed at the negotiated rate.

Terms and Conditions for Mortgages

- i) The property being offered as security will be primary resident of the applicant. Community Savings Credit Union will complete one full appraisal for staff at no cost (if required); additional appraisals will be the responsibility of the employee and charged at cost.
- ii) Employees who choose to pay out or refinance their mortgage within the term of the mortgage will be subject to standard pre-payment penalties at the time of the request.

#### Option 1

Variable Prime Rate minus one-half (-1/2%) percent charged by Community Savings Credit Union or Closed Terms – the lesser of the Posted Rate minus two (-2%) percent or the Renewal Rate minus point five (.5%) percent for the full amount the employee qualifies for, but the rate never to be below the Government Prescribed Rate.

In the event that an employee is laid off during the term of their mortgage, the <u>Employer</u> agrees to maintain the staff rate (as detailed above) for the remainder of the calendar year in which the lay off occurs.

Option 2

Primeline at Prime minus one-half (-1/2%) percent for the full amount the employee qualifies for. A combination of Option 1 and 2 is permitted up to the full amount that the employee qualifies for. Documents shall be written at the negotiated rate.

## **Computer Loans**

Personal Computer Purchase Plan is available to all employees as per the Community Savings Credit Union policy.

The <u>Employer</u> reserves the right to change the name of the Personal Computer Purchase Plan to the Personal Technology Plan and expand the list to include more devices than home computers.

#### APPENDIX "E" - REGISTERED RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

#### **Contributions**

Upon completion of your probationary period, Community Savings Credit Union will contribute an amount equal to <u>thirteen</u> (13%) percent of your regular monthly salary for full-time and part-time employees toward a Registered Retirement Savings Plan in your name. <u>Any future contribution increases will be set out under Article 10.03</u>. If you wish, you may contribute voluntarily to the plan through payroll deductions up to the maximum allowable under the Income Tax Act, anytime after your probationary period. Contact the <u>People & Culture Team</u> in order to set this up.

#### **Features**

The Registered Retirement Savings Plan has the following features:

Funds will be deposited to Community Savings Credit Union's standard variable Registered Retirement Savings Plan and you determine how you wish to invest these funds. Interest is compounded semi-annually. The rate of interest will be Community Savings Credit Union's posted variable rate.

Proceeds may be used to purchase Mutual Funds administrated by Aviso Wealth Inc.. The administration costs are paid by the employee. Contact Community Savings Credit Union's <u>Manager</u>, Investment Services for details.

Employees can negotiate bid rates.

The funds will remain in the plan during your employment with Community Savings Credit Union.

Community Savings Credit Union's contribution to RRSP's are taxable and will therefore appear on your annual earnings statement (T4) under the heading Employment Income as well as under the heading Other Taxable Allowances and Benefits.

#### LETTER of UNDERSTANDING #1 - TRAINING

**BETWEEN:** Community Savings Credit Union

**AND:** MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)

#### "TRAINING"

This letter is part of and attached to the Collective Agreement.

The parties agree that the Employer will begin to develop training modules on a job-by-job basis.

The priority for new modules shall be:

- (a) Loans Clerking;
- (b) Accounts Technicians;
- (c) Branch Loans Officers
- (d) MSR's
- (e) Mutual Funds

The purpose of such training and training modules is to provide sufficient training such that the person will be able to successfully bid on the position for which s/he has been trained the next time a vacancy occurs.

The Employer agrees to make a manager available for scheduled sessions after hours as this will be on the employees own time. Job shadowing will be considered by managers where practical.

Signed this 3rd day of February, 2009.

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE EMPLOYER

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE UNION

"Original Signed"
Bruce Cook, President and CEO

"Original Signed"
Paul Bjarnason, Business Representative

"Original Signed"

Judy Towill, Vice President, Human Resources

"Original Signed"
Charmaine Murray, Secretary-Treasurer

E&OE

#### **LETTER of UNDERSTANDING #2**

**BETWEEN:** Community Savings Credit Union

**AND:** MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)

Employees will be treated no less favourably than Credit Union Members with respect to matters such as service changes, mortgages and discounts.

Signed this 10th day of June, 2011.

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE EMPLOYER

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE UNION

"Original Signed"
Doug Eveneshen, President and CEO

"Original Signed"
Jack Gerow, Business Representative

E&OE

COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT: MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees, Local 378) and Community Savings Credit Union

TERM: July 1, 2022 to June 30,2026

#### LETTER of UNDERSTANDING #3

**BETWEEN:** Community Savings Credit Union

**AND:** MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)

The parties agree to meet on a quarterly basis to discuss their mutual interest in growing the business of the Credit Union and providing best service to the Members of the Credit Union.

Signed this 10th day of June, 2011.

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE EMPLOYER

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE UNION

"Original Signed"
Doug Eveneshen, President and CEO

"Original Signed"
Jack Gerow, Business Representative

E&OE

COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT: MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees, Local 378) and Community Savings Credit Union TERM: July 1, 2022 to June 30,2026

#### LETTER of UNDERSTANDING #4 - LIVING WAGE - CASUAL RATE

**BETWEEN:** Community Savings Credit Union

**AND:** MoveUP (Canadian Office and Professional Employees Union, Local 378)

As A Living Wage Employer, the casual rate of pay will be increased to the latest published Metro Vancouver Living Wage per hour (inclusive of benefits provided). While the Living Wage increases are occurring there will be no general wage increases for casual employees. Should the Living Wage program become obsolete, the rate will remain unchanged during this collective agreement.

In the event, the Living Wage increases no longer occur the parties will meet within 60 days to negotiate the casual rate going forward. The parties agree there will be no reduction in the rate.

Signed this 26th day of September, 2023.

## Signed on behalf of the Employer

Signed on behalf of the Union

Mike Schilling

Mike Schilling, President & CEO

Anny Chen, Union Representative

Phillip Legg, Chair, Board of Directors

Dalell Amed, Director, Talent & Compensation

Einstein l'auson

Kirsten I'Anson, Vice President People & Culture